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29 September 2017




Annual Report 2017 4 &4

EN &5
Chairman’s Statement

BMERR

RARMRARFESEREERRLF (HFIRIA
RAANEFE(ESFE ) REFQAREHNBELF
(GBI AEEDBEZE-_T—tF=A=+—HLF
E(RFEDz#E&E-

miZHE

REZZB-RE BHRAPERESEREREEE
B SHRFERMGBREABFTERD  TES
BEEMS RIESBRERREBEZ2ER  R=ZT
—RNE AT RBREFARTEK.7%EH
42,780,000 » ER =T — A F Z3.0%H% 18 - A&
M ZE—tFE-F2RMBBRE ARILRFIG
in3.8%Z#10,820,000A » BRBERBAHE ©

ERTHEECELERETE - BERETER
HoHEER -2 -AF0521. 18T TERY
48%E B —RNEHN4959BEBT - BRAHEER
H-ZE—REEF—ZFTHHN1365EBBTRFETERD
3.7%E_F—tLEE-FENNI314ERBT B8
TE-REEFMNBKBERMNGE o W HE D
BERAAMFEBRELH EAZEBE s AR LB
TREREEEHESHESCYHBETEERT
ERNBFED - HATHHBEETCHBREYS
EmERHEE BREERLEBYPILOZAERHE
N E RO o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % ¥ B B2 4 M 45 B 2 5]

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2017 (the “Year”).

MARKET OVERVIEW

Hong Kong’s retail market has been plagued by the persistent
decline in tourist arrivals from mainland China in 2016. The
decrease was triggered off by the country’s continued economic
slowdown and the devaluation of its currency. The number of
visits by the mainland Chinese tourists to Hong Kong fell by
6.7% to about 42.78 million in 2016, according to the Hong
Kong Tourism Board. This was worse than the 3.0% decrease in
2015. However, the situation showed a sign of improvement
with a 3.8% year-on-year increase in the first quarter of 2017 to
about 10.82 million visits by the mainland Chinese tourists to

the city.

The adverse effect spilled over into the clothing retail. Sales at
wearing apparel retail outlets in Hong Kong decreased by about
4.8% to about HK$49.59 billion in 2016 from about HK$52.11
billion in 2015. In the first quarter of 2017, the figure fell by
about 3.7% year on year to about HK$13.14 billion from about
HK$13.65 billion in the first quarter of 2016, showing that the
downtrend only abated slightly compared with that for the
whole year of 2016. Moreover, the growing trend towards a
higher proportion of the mainland Chinese tourists with lower
spending power, a weaker Renminbi against the Hong Kong
dollar and the persistently high rents in the city also sapped
luxury goods retailers of their profitability. Although some
landlords came to terms with the depressed retail market by
cutting rents at shop spaces in the street, large real estate

companies which owned or operated shopping malls were only

willing to do so to a lesser extent.
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In mainland China, retail of apparel, shoes, headwear and
knitted products rose by 7.0% to about RMB1.44 trillion in
2016, decelerating from the 9.8% growth in 2015 (source:

National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of China).

RESULTS

The Group’s main business of retailing women'’s fashion apparel
to high-end and upper-middle markets was considerably affected
by the difficult operating environment as it derived about 53.6%
of its revenue from Hong Kong during the Year. In the city, the
Group, like most other deluxe goods retailers, was hit by the fall
in the number of mainland Chinese tourists and the exorbitant
rents, especially in the prime and tourist locations where luxury
brands usually set up shops. In mainland China, where the
Group generated 15.5% of its revenue from sales, consumer
sentiment was undermined by a slowing economy, with the
impact more pronounced on the retail of luxury goods. As a
result, the Group’s mainland China-based operations, which are
located in the first- and second-tier cities, saw their sales
performance worsen. The remaining 30.9% was contributed by

sales in Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

For the Year, the Group saw a 14.5% decrease in revenue to
approximately HK$280 million and recorded a loss of
approximately HK$52.0 million attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company, compared with the loss of
approximately HK$56.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2016 (the “Previous Financial Year”). Gross profit margin
increased slightly to 78.3% for the Year from the 77.6% in the

Previous Financial Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group had been endeavouring to adapt itself to the
unfavourable market conditions by various means, including the
rationalisation of its retail network through the closure of
underperforming stores or relocation; stringent cost
management; cost-effective sales and marketing initiatives such
as the provision of a VIP club membership service (organising
the members’ visits to its product showrooms for purchasing
goods) in Hong Kong and the adoption of an online-to-offline
business model through an alliance with a mainland Chinese
online shopping website operator and by leveraging social
media. In Hong Kong, where the high rents have been
undercutting retailers’ competitiveness and profitability, the
Group had succeeded in negotiating for lower rents for some
shop spaces in the streets. In some of its shops at malls where
landlords were supportive to the Group, the Group had obtained
permission to offer several diffusion lines under one roof. All

these measures were aimed at raising efficiency.

Meanwhile, the Group was also pressing ahead with its
diverse-product, multi-brand strategy. It continued to enhance
the image of its house brands (such as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s. and
GERMAIN) and the European brands (such as LANCASTER) in
their target markets, and introduced products of a wider price
range and new product series to the market so as to broaden its
customer base. For instance, the Group launched a new product
series of deluxe and fashionable loungewear for ladies and men
under a new brand Rosamund MOISELLE in the fall/winter of
2016 through its cooperation with an iconic celebrity
Ms. Rosamund Kwan. It also shifted its focus to the market of

young customers in Hong Kong by gearing some of its product

towards their tastes.
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OUTLOOK

The deteriorating market for women’s luxury fashion apparel and
accessories in 2015 and 2016 had dealt a heavy blow to the
industry. Although the downtrend in apparel retail sales showed
slight signs of abating in the first quarter of 2017, it is very hard
to estimate when the market will bottom out. To cope with the
adverse market conditions, the Group will step up its
diverse-product, multi-brand strategy, and continue with its cost
management measures and cost-effective marketing and sales

initiatives.

For instance, during the Year, the Company furthered its
cooperation with famous celebrity Ms. Rosamund Kwan by
letting the latter acquire a 30% equity stake in its indirectly
owned subsidiary RK Moiselle Fashions Limited, which is
principally engaged in the business of designing, manufacturing,
marketing, distributing and selling women’s and men’s formal
and casual apparels (including loungewear), fashion accessories
and handbags bearing the brand “Rosamund MOISELLE". The
brand will enhance its product line of loungewear for both
women and men, launch casual outdoor wear and diversify into
fashion accessories and handbags. As to the Group’s existing
brands, emphasis will be placed on the development of
accessories such as handbags under the brand LANCASTER and
on the move to gear women's luxury fashion apparel towards the
young people’s preferences. This will reinforce the Group’s
diverse-product, multi-brand strategy and broaden the customer

base.

As its cost management measures and cost-effective marketing
and sales initiatives, the Group will try to obtain permission to
offer several diffusion lines under one roof at more of its shops,
and will also further develop its online-to-offline business model
by leveraging its own online shop at the website of Tmall and
the social media where it will try to gain more exposure for its
products in the form of online video broadcast of promotional

events with celebrities and commentaries or recommendations

by key opinion leaders.
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AEBREZFEZSHBRABHEDTR  YRALX All these measures are aimed at coping with the difficulties in
EBeRERREN - the market and at enhancing the Group’s potential for long-term
growth.

FEEBENBEET S 2 KRBERBERREFNR - I The Group will monitor closely the economic conditions and
BERHELMASIERTREZ®L - fashion trends in the markets and make appropriate adjustment

to the above plans to keep abreast of changes in the market.

R APPRECIATION

TAERKRESSHIMERRRERBHENEIEE On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
HAEENRE UREEEREINAFEHA shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
EBEFEHNS IREMAUHE - and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

FE Chan Yum Kit
B8R AR Chairman

&% —E—tFXA=+N\H Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Mainly targeting the markets for luxurious apparel, the Group
operates such house brands as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s. and
GERMAIN, while engaging in distributorship for international
brands, including LANCASTER, COCCINELLE and SEQUOIA
(which is operated by a joint venture of the Group). Each of the
brands has its own distinctive consumer base, and is being
managed separately by the Group’s dedicated management
teams and talented designer teams. The Group retails its
products under the various brands at stores in prime locations.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 75 stores and counters in
Hong Kong, first- and second-tier cities of mainland China,
Macau, Taiwan and Singapore, down from 90 as at 31 March
2016 because it rationalised its retail network in the difficult
markets.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS BY LOCATION

Operations in Hong Kong

During the year, the Group’s operations in Hong Kong were
adversely affected by the decline in the number of mainland
Chinese visitors which, in turn, was caused by China’s economic
slowdown and depreciating Renminbi. Moreover, the situation
was exacerbated by the growing trend towards a higher
proportion of mainland Chinese tourists with lower spending
power. Exorbitant rents for shop spaces, which had been
determined based on previous optimism about the retail market,
generally remained so during the year and continued to exert
severe cost pressure on businesses. The Group continued to
negotiate for lower rents for shop spaces and succeeded in some
cases. It also opened shops at prime locations with reasonable
rents and closed down shops which underperformed. The Group
opened a store in Times Square, a shopping centre in Causeway
Bay in August 2016 and a store at Central Building in the street
in Central in October 2016. Its retail stores with the best
performance are located in Central, Kowloon Tong and Tsim Sha
Tsui. Revenue from its retail operations in Hong Kong decreased
by 17.2% to approximately HK$150,379,000, which was
approximately 53.6% of the Group’s revenue. As at 31 March
2017, the Group operated 9 MOISELLE, 6 m.d.m.s., 1
LANCASTER, 3 COCCINELLE and 2 GERMAIN stores as well as 2
outlet retail stores. (As at 31 March 2016: 10 MOISELLE, 8
m.d.m.s., 4 COCCINELLE and 2 GERMAIN stores and 1 outlet
retail stores).
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The Group also continued with its cost-effective marketing and
sales initiatives by organising shopping visits by customers of its
VIP club membership to its showrooms in Hong Kong as well as
private promotion and fashion shows. The moves were aimed at
increasing engagement with the long-term customers and, thus,
at maintaining the customer loyalty. The Group also pressed
ahead with its diverse-product, multi-brand strategy by
diversifying into a product series of deluxe and fashionable
loungewear for women and men under the brand Rosamund
MOISELLE. The brand featured an iconic celebrity Ms. Rosamund
Kwan as both spokesperson and provider of the design concept
of its products. The brand tried to attract more consumers by
developing men’s loungewear and casual wear and by launching
matching outfits for couples and families. The collections under
the brand were promoted in the Group’s two fashion shows held
in Hong Kong and Beijing in September and October 2016
respectively and in a large marketing event in Shenzhen in
December 2016. Rosamund MOISELLE also sought to gain more
exposure for its products on the internet, namely through online
video broadcast of promotional events at the Group’s online
shop at Tmall, China’s most popular online shopping website,
and through the social media where artistes, models,
photographers and make-up artists were shown at work with

Rosamund MOISELLE products and key opinion leaders

commented on or recommended such products.
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Operations in mainland China

Mainland China’s decelerating economic growth and the
government measures to advocate frugality dampened
consumers’ appetite for luxury goods. As a result, sales at the
Group’s operations in the country fell by 27.5% to
approximately HK$43,591,000 and accounted for 15.5% of the
Group’s revenue for the year. To cope with the unfavourable
market conditions, the Group rationalised its retail network by
closing down some shops and relocating some others to spaces
with lower rents. It also tapped the growing popularity with
online consumption among the middle class and the young
generation by stepping up its initiatives in e-commerce. For
instance, it continued to operate its online store under the
MOISELLE brand at Tmall. This followed its adoption of the
online-to-offline business model through alliances with several
mainland Chinese online shopping website operators in previous
years. To reinforce its online marketing efforts, the Group
leveraged the social media such as WeChat and Weibo by
working with some key opinion leaders or internet celebrities
who commented on or recommended the Group’s products in
their blogs or other online articles. The moves helped to
enhance the brand recognition and entice the browsers of the

websites or social media to shop at its offline stores.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group operated 22 MOISELLE stores
and 1 GERMAIN store (As at 31 March 2016: 29 MOISELLE, 3
GERMAIN and 3 m.d.m.s. stores) in the country.
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Operations in Macau

The effect of mainland China’s slowing economy and
government measures to advocate frugality spilled over into
Macau’s retail market and depressed the Group’s sales over the
year. However, the Group’s operations in Macau remained
profitable because of the low operating cost. The Group
operated 6 shops at the Venetian Macao Resort Hotel, Sands
Cotai Central Hotel and the Parisian Macao Hotel, including 2
concept stores, M CONCEPT, 2 MOISELLE stores, 1 m.d.m.s.
store and 1 COCCINELLE store. (As at 31 March 2016: 1 M
CONCEPT store, 2 MOISELLE stores, 1T m.d.m.s. store and 1
COCCINELLE store) The retail stores generated a combined
revenue of approximately HK$44,860,000, which increased by
approximately 8.3% compared with that in the comparative year
of 2016.

Operations in Taiwan

The Group operated 10 MOISELLE and 2 m.d.m.s. stores, 4
outlets and counters and 1 LANCASTER store in Taiwan as at 31
March 2017 (As at 31 March 2016: 12 MOISELLE and 4 m.d.m.s.
stores, and 3 outlets and counters). The retail stores in Taiwan
generated a combined revenue of approximately
HK$31,622,000, accounting for approximately 11.3% of the

Group's total revenue for the year.

Operations in Singapore

The Group’s business in Singapore recorded a slight 1.3%
increase in sales to approximately HK$9,945,000 during the
year. As at 31 March 2017, it ran 2 MOISELLE stores and 1
GERMAIN store, T M CONCEPT store, 1 outlet and 1 m.d.m.s.
store in the country (As at 31 March 2016: 2 MOISELLE and 2
GERMAIN stores, T M CONCEPT store and 1 outlet).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 14.5% to
approximately HK$280,397,000 (2016: HK$327,996,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2017 as compared with 2016. Due to
the deterioration in performance of mainland China market, the
revenue of the segment outside Hong Kong decreased by
approximately 11.2% to approximately HK$130,018,000 (2016:
HK$146,372,000) during the year ended 31 March 2017 as a
result. The segment turnover ratio had maintained similar level
at approximately 46.4% which was two percentage points higher

as compared to the year ended 31 March 2016.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment decreased by
approximately 17.2% to approximately HK$150,379,000 (2016:
HK$181,624,000) which was mainly due to the further decrease
in sales from the mainland Chinese tourists during the financial

year under review.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 78.3%, as compared to 77.6% of the
previous year. The gross profit margin was improved yet still
remained in the normal range of gross margin of the Group
during previous years. Operating expenses for the year ended 31
March 2017 totaled approximately HK$286,843,000, compared
to approximately HK$327,630,000 for 2016, decreased by
approximately 12.4%. Since the revenue was not sufficient to
cover the cost of sales and the operating expenses, mainly staff
costs and rental expenses, the Group suffered an operating loss
of 19.7% (2016: 19.0%).

The loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders for the
year ended 31 March 2017 was approximately HK$52,000,000
(2016: HK$56,515,000), improved by approximately
HK$4,515,000, 8.0%.




Moiselle International Holdings Limited % ¥ B B2 4 M 45 B 2 5]

14

Annual Report 2017 4 &4

B BRI i M o3

Management Discussion and Analysis

RBESRUMBER

BE-Z—tHFZ-AZ+-HLFE FEEUR
BRM2ADRECENEEBESHE - ARER
WMEEMBEE  UERIBEIETHBER
MRFEHCEBESHRIEEEBRRE A -
RER FAEBZEHNERRASHEFEHLR
83,000,000 jt (=& —75%F 1 139,000,000%
) RERBRITEFRETBEUBIRAREEER -
AEBMZBNEBRRETEEFERAAZINEER
KRB 2B - RER  AEBZERRABTIERES
ARBHEZRERBITEN - EEEEHNELRE
BzNEERER - UNFERETEZEETED -

RIZE—tFE=A=+—0 FEEZLEHBEL
7B B K1 R 1T & 5 498,000,000/ 5T (=& — 7~
F 148,000,000 T)  AHREMEEES - K=
Z—tFZA=Z+—B  AEEHESRBITELSF
SIRITEERE (BRIRITERRSIN 854,000,000/
T (ZZF—XE 151,000,000 1x) EFH
5,000,000 7T (=& — 75 : 2,000,000587T) & F
LLENA o

FEBEBRERBRIUBERRL - R-Z2—LF=
A=+—H RBLEX(RBEERURBER) L
B7E(ZE-ARF 345 MEABGHERGR
THRELERENREAERURRER) B1.3%
(ZE—RF 11.3%) °

EEER

RZZE—tF=A=+—8  KE{E#X23,000,000
BT (ZE—R"E=ZA=+—H :23,000,000% 7T)
ZHEHELHREENDIRPEATEEERRTE
MHVHEAR o

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group financed its
operations with internal generated cash flows. The Group adopts
a prudent financial policy such that it can meet the financial
obligations when they fall due and maintain a sufficient
operating fund for the development of the Group’s business. At
the end of the year, the Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and
cash balances amounted to approximately HK$83 million (2016:
HK$139 million). Cash and bank deposits were held mainly in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has foreign
operations and certain of its net assets are exposed to the risk of
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. During the year, the
Group’s currency exposure mainly arises from the cash and bank
deposits denominated in Renminbi. The management regularly
monitors the foreign currency exchange risk of the Group and

may consider hedging activities when necessary.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group maintained secured bank loans
of approximately HK$8 million (2016: approximately HK$8
million) at operating subsidiary level financing its working
capital. As at 31 March 2017, the Group maintained aggregate
composite banking facilities other than secured bank loans of
approximately HK$54 million (2016: HK$51 million) with
various banks, of which approximately HK$5 million (2016:

HK$2 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2017, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 2.7 times (2016: 3.4 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was 1.3% (2016:
1.3%).

Charge on assets
As at 31 March 2017, leasehold land and buildings with a
carrying value of approximately HK$23 million (31 March 2016:

HK$23 million) were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the

Group.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed 562 (2016: 702)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical
insurance cover and training programmes.

COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS’ INTERESTS, SOCIETY’S
WELL-BEING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to ensuring the rights and interests of its
stakeholders (including its shareholders, employees and
customers) and the well-being of society at large while
complying with all the laws and regulations of the places where
it has operations, including Hong Kong, mainland China,
Taiwan, Macau and Singapore.

In addition to its business objective of maximizing returns to
shareholders, the Group also tries its best to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility. For instance, the Group ensures protection
of both environment and consumers against hazardous
substances throughout the process of conducting its business,
from raw material procurement, production to retail. The Group
also has taken measures to ensure that its factory in Shajing,
Shenzhen, complies with the local environmental regulations on
industrial emissions and effluents. The factory is only
responsible for sewing and is not engaged in any dyeing of
fabrics.

The Group believes in consumers’ entitlement to quality and
safe products. To attain this goal, the Group maintains
well-established relationships with trustworthy raw material
suppliers and processing factories, and delivers a sample of each
model of its products to Shenzhen Academy of Metrology and
Quality Inspection for inspection. Besides, the Group also
requires all business partners, raw material suppliers and
production vendors to fulfill all relevant legal and regulatory
requirements on product safety.

The Group now has over 30 suppliers and has business
relationship of more than a decade on average with each of
them. Such well-established business relationships with the

suppliers are attributable to the Group’s success in building their
trust in it with integrity and by honouring the contracts.
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The Group has established a customer loyalty program in order
to enhance customer satisfaction as well as to encourage
repeated purchase. Under the membership program, the VIP
customers can enjoy special discounts and regular activities. It
also manages and maintains good customer relations through
customer service hotlines, after-sales supports as well as bespoke
service and communication with members via mails and emails.

Another group of stakeholders who are also key to the Group’s
success are its employees. The Group offers its staff reasonable
remuneration and benefits and protect their rights according to
the labour laws of the places where it has operations. For
instance, it complies with the relevant laws and regulations on
the employees’ provident fund pension scheme, employment
insurance and safety at work. It also provides training for them
that benefit the development of both their careers and the
Group's business.

The Group aims to accumulate resources for business and use
them effectively to ensure sustainable development. For
instance, it has been enhancing the brand equity of its house
brands and that of the European brands for which it is a
distributor by actively exploring new markets. It has also
allocated resources for the design, research and development of
products and the training of staff. The move was aimed at
manufacturing products of high quality and refreshing designs
with new or improved materials. It also serves to raise the
efficiency of the retail operations. The Group also tries its best to
protect its intellectual property rights and patents and respects
other parties’ intellectual property rights.

The Group also understands that it is not an isolated functioning
unit in the market and society so it has sponsored charitable
work to contribute to the common good. For instance, the Group
sponsored amfAR, the Foundation of AIDS Research during the
year.

All these initiatives and measures can contribute to the
sustainability of the Group’s business.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 58, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 40
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading.
Mr. Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hongkong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
November 2001 and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in
December 2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding
Chinese Award by the World Chinese Business Investment
Foundation. Mr. Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in
management from Armstrong University in the United States. He
was also awarded 2004 Associateship by The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He
is a fellow member of Asian Knowledge Management
Association. He is currently a member of CreateSmart Initiative
Vetting Committee and of the Design-Business Collaboration
Scheme Assessment Panel under Create Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is
a member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and serves
on the expert group on fashion industry under the working group
on manufacturing industries, innovative technology, and cultural
and creative industries of the Economic Development

Commission. He is the vice-chairman of HK Guangxi Chamber

of Commerce. He is the husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 58, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for
the Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 40 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. She was awarded Golden Bauhinia Women
Entrepreneur Excellence Award in November 2016. She is a
member of Zonta Club of New Territories, an honorary president
and council member of Hong Kong Federation of Women, a
co-chairman of HK Tianjin Women'’s Federation, a member of
HKFW Women Entrepreneurs Committee and of Hong Kong
Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association, a delegate of
All-China Women's Federation, Zhuhai and a honorary president
of All-China Women’s Federation Hong Kong Delegates
Association Limited. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman
of the Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and
Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 39, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is a member of the Mainland

Business Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development

Council. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company,
and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan
Pak Hei.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 57, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 29
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 28 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as
China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also
appointed as notary public in December 2009. She is a member
of the Board of Management of the Chinese Permanent

Cemeteries.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 56, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently a regional director of Full Throttle Films Limited. He
has 26 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 63, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong
is currently the director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has
over 30 years’ experience in management consulting and
systems implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional

Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in

commerce from Queen’s University in Canada.
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Senior Management

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 47, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 26 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators of the United Kingdom and a holder of the

practitioner’s endorsement of HKICS.

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 29, is the creative director of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s design department. In addition, he is
also responsible for the Group’s brand building, marketing and
interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a bachelor of arts
degree in fashion management (fashion retail) from University of
Arts London. He is a member of the General Donations/Special
Events Organising Committee under the Campaign Committee of
The Community Chest of Hong Kong and of Hong Kong CPPCC
Youth Association, the gala vice-chairperson of the academy ball
organising committee of the Society of the Academy for

Performing Arts and a co-chair of amfAR Gala Hong Kong. He is

the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) is committed to meeting statutory and
regulatory requirements and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7 as
below, the company has complied with the code provisions
listed in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

Code Provisions A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the company. The company will however keep this

matter under review.

Code Provisions A.6.7

Code Provisions A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that the
independent non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of the company. Due to prior business engagements
external to the company, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney was unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the company held on 30
August 2016.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

21
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises six directors, three of which are executive
directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, and Mr. Chan Sze Chun, and three are independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian,
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, five board meetings
were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
paragraph A.2.7 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which states
that the Chairman should hold meeting with the non-executive
directors without the executive directors of the company

present. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

w5 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one general meeting, the
annual general meeting, was held. The attendance of each

director is set out as follows:

w5 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 11
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1”71
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 171
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1”71
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 0/1
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 1”71

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.
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The relationship among members of the Board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

DIRECTORS” TRAINING

director are set out as follows:

PR 28K B

Training received and date

[REZ(CAS  BIHORERE]

—E-tH&-A+-—H

Rejuvenating an Aging
Organisation: Digital
Mindset Key

11 February 2017

[fREEZLAS - BISOREME]

—E2—+HZA+—H

Rejuvenating an Aging
Organisation: Digital
Mindset Key

11 February 2017

What Role Should Hong Kong
Play in the Global Green

Finance Revolution?
—E-tF-At+RH
What Role Should Hong

Kong Play in the Global

Green Finance Revolution?
16 February 2017

BIRHEE

Training provider

ERESES

The Hong Kong
Institute of

Directors

BBEEEE

The Hong Kong
Institute of

Directors

BEERSRRESZS

The Hong Kong
Securities and
Investment

Institute

The directors have provided records of the training they received

to the company. The details of training records provided of each

Fr B

Time spent

VN

3 hours

3/ B

3 hours

1/NBE

1 hour
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BE=x FriEzsgdlk B 8 EAREEE FRERE
Director Training received and date Training provider Time spent
REHEE 2017 ZHBENEE EREEESE 2/ B
—E-tFZAt+RH
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney Impact to Global The Hong Kong 2 hours
Issue of 2017 Institute of
16 February 2017 Directors
ERELL BYFHTESEWIE EEHETAMEBRAT 67)N B

—E-REXNAT=H-
“E-R"EARBBRRK
—E-R"F¥+=ZAAH
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen INED Forums KPMG 6 hours
13 June 2016,
5 September 2016
& 5 December 2016

Non-Executive Director BERMKESTMBHKT 1.5/
Programme

ZE-RENBTNH

Non-Executive Director PricewaterhouseCoopers 1.5 hours
Programme

18 August 2016

RERZITERENRBE-_ZE—tFE=A=+—H Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian had provided training record on her
LFEBTEBEMEMRAERAMISESERR fulfillment of the mandatory continuing professional
Z BN o development requirements of The Law Society of Hong Kong

during the year ended 31 March 2017.

FHUTEEZMEH TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYFATES2EHAEME  AARBARRF The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
REBERMIRESE - term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

BYFBTES 2B LM INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

RAABAEUMBBLFPUTEERELTRIE The company has received from each of the independent

3BMGRBHBES-—tE=ZAZ+-HLFEL non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the

BUBRRE IRAZBIUFPTESYEBIA year ended 31 March 2017 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing

+ o Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.




REEZEE
ARAREETFEEELTAZRAERIREEZS
g REZEEHALAMUBIFAITESRE
St (EFE)RERERLL  UR—UHITESR
s L AR -

REZEECIEACKBERFERITRER
R BIESS2RE  AHRARK (BERKE-
il - EBEZENBHEAE)  URMEER
ENZERESRESEHITE (BIREERITH
BE)SHHESERNESTRHEES -

EEERES L
RAFCENESERES T LEE  EREET
JEEEE:

a. REEZSHAERERBESSZHITESK
BITESHERNESTAMN

b. ERMEEAZ TCMFREE - MBER&EHR &8
HRHTENEE  URARESZEIARKE
o UBEESENNE R

c. ETRERZAUAFESTESHNIR
BE - BH - EXABRMESZTILEE -

REZESEERNTESERESTILHRER A
THERBEM ENEFNATFERR  ARFTER
EE o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 M 47 B 2 #®]
Annual Report 2017 44

o SR 8
Corporate Governance Report

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b. Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide

different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c. Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its

implementation and to review the progress on achieving the

objectives.

25
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one

executive director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one remuneration
committee meeting was held. The attendance of each committee

member is set out as follows:

o FE RE 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 1”71
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 11

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has approved the terms of

non-executive director’s appointment.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined

based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out below:

AE
HK$ Number of person
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 2

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

7 and 8 to the financial statements respectively.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to external auditors is

analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
Fi R Audit services 1,689,000
FETIRTE Non-audit services .
1,689,000

ERZETEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

RABMMKBLETRAEI2IRKLEREZES B
EERREEAEEMBRHBEARARER
RABERHE BEREESHARA=MUBLHE
BITESAR  2HRREELL (EF) ~ KEH
FERENRLZL  UOEZSER -

The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and risk management and internal

control systems. The audit committee comprises three

independent non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the Board.

27
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

H R 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of risk management and internal control systems
which are essential for effective and efficient operations of the
group and are fundamental in the thorough and regular
evaluation of the nature and extent of the risks to which the
group is exposed. These systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal control is defined
as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the achievement of objectives in relation to the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations
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For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the group, focusing on three major business cycles of
the group, under COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) framework. The Board had been
satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of these systems on
monitoring and evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the
directors were dedicated to implement various initiatives to
further enhance the existing risk management and internal
control systems alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.

During the year, the group has maintained an internal audit
function with internal resources and engaged external
consultants to assist the management in order to identify,

evaluate and manage significant risks of the group.

The group complies with the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission
in view of fulfilling its obligations to disclose inside information

under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The statement of the independent auditor of the group regarding

their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the

independent auditor’s report on pages 41 to 55.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.

If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the company.

In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the
proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to
be convened.
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The directors of Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the
company”) presented its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company and its

subsidiaries (the “group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The company is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman Islands and has its registered office and principal place
of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F,
Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong

respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 3(b) to the

financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the group during the year, a
discussion on the group’s future business development and an
analysis of the group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the

Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 8 and the Management

Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For principal risks and uncertainties, the directors are aware that
the group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, including those
specific to the group and those having generic impacts. The
management closely monitors the business environment in
which the group operates in order to have opportunities and
threats the group faces identified, reported, monitored and
managed on a continuous basis. Related discussion on certain
risks and uncertainties is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 8 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report and note 25 to the

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the

group’s total revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the group’s purchases attributable

to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:
rEERBESSEIL
Percentage of the group’s
purchases total
The largest supplier 20%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 42%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
167 and 168.



IR E
AARAER-E-—tF-A+=RIRAERTEN
ZHHRE(ZE2-XRE 8RB - EXRE
BOR-ZE—tFhAZ+-RRBIRREMZH
FRFRNBE-Z—tF=ZA=+-HLEFEZ
RBREBR2IBIM(ZZE—RF  SR2BA) -

REBRAFEE 2ZZIBFB495,0008 T (==
— N 129,000/ 7T) °

R 2
RABZRAFBECHRUBRERMFE24(0) °

RKEHE

AEBERBEEBCRIMLAESTEARIDAZES
(BRIEHDEETHEFZEBEBTENME RS
g (MaEestal)) - BESFHAN—EHRBUIT
ABEBZREHRFCRMAKTE - RIBBESFE - B
ERHEEVEASEBREERHERA Z5%R T E
EHMR - MEARBERAZ LRA30,0008 T -

REBEPEARKMNR ((HED R ZBRE  AEEH
ERAHTEREESEAABEKBEEE 2 REHRNER
REHE - REBEAZETHEELR  READERE
B ARE T ZUERBAFEFEHMER -
BrEfriEE 2 FEERIN  AEBB AR ZE
ZRABANRAEHLMEREFE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 M 47 B 2 #®]
Annual Report 2017 44

O

Directors’ Report

DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of Hong Kong one cent per share (2016:
Hong Kong one cent per share) was paid on 13 January 2017.
The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of Hong Kong two cents per share (2016: Hong Kong two cents
per share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
22 September 2017.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$495,000 (2016: HK$29,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 24(c)

to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material

obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with

such plans beyond the annual contributions described above.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of

Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPF. The
subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual pension

payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with article 87 of the company’s articles of association and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within

one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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EERIETBRABRESF 2ER DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

RIE—+tF=ZA=1+—H ' AQAFEERFET As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
BAERALARRARELIE (EERESZREPE directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
155 ([ 5 REEHEG D) EBXVER) 2R~ HER underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
MREST  EERRARERZRBERGIZE352 associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
e REFE2ETMARE  NERB(E BB Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
ERGMERAR ([HRXMDBFFLTRADT L register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
TRADFHELTARNESETESRGNEEST as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Bl (MBEFR D) HMERABRBIAzERRAR Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
mT Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

REGzERER EEfivEs
EEpE Beneficial Approximate REmME
Name of director interest in shares  percentage of interests Nature of interest
FBRENS & 190,872,000 66.29% NG
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% Kk
Family
2,100,000 0.73% BEA
Personal
(KraE(1) K 2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
®OELtL 190,872,000 66.29% NCIVEE
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% EYi 3
Family
2,100,000 0.73% 18 A
Personal
(Btat1)R2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
PREZREE 900,000 0.31% 5PN
Mr. Chan Sze Chun Personal
BERELL 30,000 0.01% 18 A
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Personal




EERFETRAEBRE S 28 (#)

wzt

(1) 190,000,000 7% % B 3 J3 HSuper Result
Consultants Limited (I Super Result]) 8 -
Super ResultZ BRATIHRBRMANEE ([REED
ReEGEZE (HEZE ) INEREF46.7%R
46.7% ° REE R B L T EH IR TR B R Super
ResultAT#78 2190,000,000/ B 13 7 5 A A 1

%‘Eo

872,000/ 3% % IR 12 Jh ANew First Investments
Limited ([New First]) 38 ° New FirstZ 4T3
HREERBRLZETDBERERS0%  BREER
BRLTHEBEEHWIR B R New FirstFiiFE 2
872,000 M HEE QAR -

2 BHRREERBZIBRE REBZIHRRAE
BRBAZRNT  MEERRABEERGEER
) P

o —UEERETHEARUEEREARS
BEAAREAEESERN -ETESTESHER
ERFERELERD  ZERNVER LI THA KRR
REFEMRRASBEERELFEAEIRERSHE
EAMEAR D IKRSER ZER -

BREMEN RZEB—tF=ZR=1+—-H ' &A2QFH
EMESHERTHRAERREEE2HEALE
ERALARAEMEEEZE (ERRIFSRHE
RPIEXVER) 2R~ HEARDRES+ - FBEAE
REARBEBZRBEMROAEI2RZRAEFEZE
AR RARBREETFALNSRDARBER
Rz EBIKR °

BREEEN BEZT-—LtF=ZA=Z+—HLFE
BB AQF  FEEFAERLQF - WEQRARE
ANBRARAMBEREN-F2EEAZH  BE
RRRAESRETETRAER RS 2BBHI ARS8
RZFRAEBARRAREMEMEE 2RO K
BEEmES -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) as to 46.7% and 46.7%
respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be
deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by Super Result
as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each
of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested in
the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain director also has beneficial interest
in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting or to participate in any distribution or winding

up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2017 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.
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RATRAZEEE R

RZZB-—LHF=ZA=1t—H BRAQAREEH
KB ERPEBMR 2 REFE 2B RMATRE
BRARXRAEERERITHRAEZI  UTRRRA
RARGREERDPEEEARBESZRMERD
EXVHASA LT 2EBERKR

BREMW

Name of shareholder

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

BEAEG2HE BT

RO zBOED L

HRRG A Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

Bt : Super Result ZBRATIHREERBRZ LT HHIE
BEFA46.7%R46.7% °

BRERER EX[ESREBRTHRAENRES 28
Hw | —EHEARRAESREETHRAE 2 EHI
BERADARBIFZRPEMRAFEIBHM2BRER
BEvEmffes RZE-—tF=ZA=+—8"

3 48 A+ A D TR RABRIR D R A A
H%A o

EERXRS  RESEHZ2ESR

RERIAXRFEEEMER  HAQXF HERAD
A -MEBLARARERMERRER -FAFIL2E
MEERS  ZHIEHND AT ESHEER
R ERESR ©

190,000,000 65.99% (BfzE) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 46.7% and 46.7% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the

company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain material related party transactions as set out in note
28(a) to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transactions are exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the

directors of the company is currently in force and was in force

throughout the year.
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3 4] AUDITORS

ETRETTMEBHAABER - HEHEBREEME - B KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
EFHETTMEHIEELD AR ZRER - re-appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
BREEEHENRRBFAS LIRS - auditors of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

AREEE® By order of the board
E Chan Yum Kit
BR AR Chairman

&% —E—tFXA=+N\H Hong Kong, 28 June 2017




bl

BUGBMEEE
HEFEBREEERAAERR
(RESHEAMALERAA)

=R

RZBE (A TEEIEMD) ERBAIHNEE
T4ENEREREEERARA (UATHBIER
AN REMBLR (UTHABIEEE]) NERS K
R LU BEBREBER-Z-—LtF=A=+—H
NGRSV BRAREBEZALFENGSRSE
® GEBRERAtEZERER REESZEHR
MEERERER  URGEUBRERME  B1F
FTESHHEME-

BMRE ZERCHBRRCRETBSHMA
SREMENC(EBUERELEREEM P 5 it K
7 BEER-ZE—tE=ZA=1+—-ANHKREHE
MARBEZALEENGREUBERERGEES
e WEBREB(AAKRINEEEREBE
o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 M 47 B 2 #®]
Annual Report 2017 44

T > A% B il o 7
Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the group”) set out on pages 56 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the group
as at 31 March 2017 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been

properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Potential impairment of leasehold improvements in retail stores and provisions for onerous operating lease contracts

Refer to notes 2(a), 2(b), 11 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(i)(ii)

and 1(q)(ii).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The cost of renting retail store premises represents a
significant portion of the group’s operating costs. The
majority of the non-cancellable operating leases for the
rental of retail store premises run for an initial period of

one to three years.

Economic conditions impact consumer sentiment and
spending power such that the sales performance of each
retail store can fluctuate significantly during its lease term.
There is a risk that the carrying value of leasehold
improvements in some retail stores may not be recoverable
in full through the future cash flows to be generated from
operations of that retail store or from disposal of the

leasehold improvements.

The group sustained losses for the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2017 which management considered was an
indicator of potential impairment of leasehold

improvements in retail stores as at 31 March 2017.

In addition, future cash flows generated from some retail
stores could be lower than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the financial obligations under the operating lease

contracts of the respective stores.

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
leasehold improvements in retail stores and provisions for

onerous operating lease contracts included the following:

e evaluating management’s identification of
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), the allocation of
assets to each CGU identified and the impairment
assessment methodology adopted by management
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards;

e considering whether the discounted cash flow
forecast for each CGU supported the carrying value
of the relevant assets or exceeded the value of the
future financial obligations under the
non-cancellable operating leases and whether
management’s impairment assessments indicated that
a reversal of a previously recognised impairment
provision or provision for onerous operating lease

contracts was required;

e performing a retrospective review of the impairment
assessments carried out by management in the
previous year by comparing the forecasts of revenue
and operating profit with the current year’s

performance to assess the reliability of management’s

forecasting process;
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Potential impairment of leasehold improvements in retail stores and provisions for onerous operating lease contracts

Refer to notes 2(a), 2(b), 11 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(i)(ii)

and 1(q)(ii).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Management performed impairment assessments of
leasehold improvements in retail stores by determining
their recoverable amounts using discounted cash flow
forecasts which involved the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in estimating future
revenue, future margins, future staff costs, future rental

expenses and the discount rates applied.

We identified potential impairment of leasehold
improvements in retail stores and potential provisions for
onerous operating lease contracts to be a key audit matter
because the future cash flows and profits of the retail
stores are inherently uncertain and determining the level of
provisions required, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement which could be subject to

potential bias.

e comparing the most significant inputs used in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue, future margins, future staff
costs and future rental expenses, with the historical
performance of these retail stores and the budgets and
forecasts approved by directors, taking into account
recent developments in the retail sector and the future

operating plans for the group;

e assessing the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against those of

comparable retailers;

e performing sensitivity analyses of key assumptions,
including future revenue, future margins and the
discount rates applied, and considering the resulting
impact on the impairment charge and provisions for
onerous operating lease contracts and whether there

were any indicators of management bias;

e enquiring of the Group Chief Operating Officer and
senior members of the sales team about any plans for

retail store downsizing or closures; and

e considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of leasehold improvements in retail stores
and provisions for onerous operating lease contracts

with reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards.
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Valuation of inventories

Refer to notes 2(c) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(j).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Sales of inventories in the fashion industry can be volatile
with consumer tastes and preferences changing according
to the latest fashion trends.

The group typically sells or disposes of off-season
inventories at a markdown from the original price to make
room for new season inventories in its retail stores.
Accordingly, the actual future selling prices of some items
of inventory may fall below their purchase costs.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because the judgement exercised by management in
determining an appropriate level of inventory provisions
involves predicting the amount of inventories unsold at the
end of each season and the markdowns necessary to sell
such off-season inventories through outlets and other
channels in the ensuing periods, both of which can be
inherently uncertain.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories
included the following:

e assessing whether the inventory provisions at the
reporting date were consistent with the group’s
inventory provisioning policy by recalculating the
inventory provisions based on the percentages and
other parameters specified in the group’s inventory
provisioning policy with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

e assessing on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing brackets by comparing the
individual items selected with underlying records
which indicated the season of production of the item;

e evaluating the group’s inventory provisioning policy
by comparing management’s forecasts of the unsold
amount of inventories at the end of each season and
the corresponding forecast markdowns with the
historical sales amounts and markdown data for the

current and prior years;

e comparing inventory balances by season against the
respective balances in prior years and the movement
by season against historical movements to identify
inventories which are relatively slow moving;

e comparing, on a sample basis, the carrying value of
inventory items at the reporting date with actual sales
prices achieved for those inventories subsequent to
the reporting date; and

e enquiring of the Group Chief Operating Officer and
senior members of the sales team about any expected
changes in plans for markdowns or disposals of
off-season inventories and comparing their
representations with actual sales transactions

subsequent to the reporting date.
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Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings held for own use

Refer to notes 2(d) and 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(f) and 1(g).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The group holds several investment properties in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, which comprise shops, offices
and warehouses, for rental income and capital
appreciation purposes which are stated at their fair values
at each reporting date. The group also holds several land
and buildings in Hong Kong and Mainland China for its
own use, which comprise offices, warehouses and
directors’ quarter. These properties are stated at annually
revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation at each reporting date.

The group’s investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use were valued at HK$155,855,000 and
HK$383,904,000 as at 31 March 2017, respectively.

The fair values of the investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use were assessed by the directors
based on independent valuations prepared by a
professionally qualified independent firm of surveyors
using the income capitalisation method (for investment
properties) and the direct comparison method (for own
use properties). The key estimates and assumptions
adopted by the external property valuer included rental
yields and the selection of comparable market

transactions.

We identified the valuation of investment properties and
land and buildings held for own use as a key audit matter
because the valuations of these properties requires the
exercise of significant judgement and estimation which

increases the risk of error or potential management bias.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties and land and buildings held for own use

included the following:

e obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuer engaged by
the Group and on which the directors’ assessment of
the fair values of investment properties and land and

buildings held for own use was based;

e assessing the external property valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being
valued and considering their objectivity and

independence;

e with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, discussing with the external property
valuer, without the presence of management, and
challenging the valuation methodology applied and
the key estimates and assumptions adopted in their
valuations by comparing the rental yields and
comparable market transactions adopted by the
external property valuer with available market data,
on a sample basis, and utilising the industry
knowledge and experience of our internal property

valuation specialists; and

e undertaking an analysis of each property valuation,
comparing the movements in capital values over the
year by obtaining evidence of comparable sales in the
neighbourhood of each property and assessing
whether the external evidence was consistent with the

values provided by the external property valuer.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the group’s financial

reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the group

to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o FHERESUBHRRMNERIBLIN - SEAR e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
T BERE URGEVBBRERRETER the consolidated financial statements, including the
MR ZFEE - disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial

statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e ¥ EXEEANBERIXBIDNUBESER e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
ZE - BENBHEL  UWEHGESHBHRE financial information of the entities or business activities
BRER -HMEE BEEEENANIO - E within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated
BEMHT - BMNABFRRAREREE - financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,

supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

BREMBEN RMNEEXESSBRTHENE We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
TEE - FERH EXEFNHRE 8FREME other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
T AR A PO B4R R B R KRB o significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BMENERZESRXEY  HPAKMEHESR We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
BEEVMHNABEEERER  YHEBMBEEA have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
B EARECERMBLENMEERNE independence and communicate with them all relationships and
fthEE UREEANERT HENHEER - other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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REEZZESEENSEY  KMABEHLESEE From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
HARGREUBRENEAZTAEE  AMBMREA determine those matters that were of most significance in the
EENSBE - HMERBARE T HMEBLESEE audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
BRIFEZRZEZRAAFLOMBEREELESE » NERBIK period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
ZENBERLT  WMREEFAHERMBEPEER these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
EEERNEAEZRBRBELENARAE  BRIFPR precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
EREEREFBBEZEE - extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should

not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

HARBYZBMRENEAEESBARTSE - The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Hui Sau Yee, Jenny.

EEREMERM KPMG

HEE AT Certified Public Accountants
EBRERE 8th Floor, Prince’s Building
EITE105 10 Chater Road
RFRES#Z Central, Hong Kong

—E=—t+EXHB=+N\H 28 June 2017
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BE-Z—+F=A=+—BILEE (WUBE5|R) For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—EB—tF —E-REF
2017 2016
Mt = T T
Note $’000 $000
Wz Revenue 3 280,397 327,996
HE R K Cost of sales (60,798) (73,387)
EF Gross profit 219,599 254,609
H A Ug A Other revenue 4 8,057 8,923
H it & F 58 Other net gain 4 4,052 1,790
HERDHERA Selling and distribution costs (214,400) (255,918)
THREAMKSERX Administrative and other operating expenses (72,443) (71,712)
KEEE Loss from operations (55,135) (62,308)
LR =479 Finance costs 5(a) (185) (158)
BREWMEZHBERSE Valuation gains on investment properties 11 9,440 14,420
BEBALT M KRESEY 2 Valuation gains on land and buildings held
EYELE for own use 11 612 1,138
BihEE AT 2EEB Share of loss of an associate 13 - (419)
EBiheg A AmzEiE Share of loss of a joint venture 14 (2,632) (4,087)
MR AT 1R Loss before taxation 5 (47,900) (51,414)
R Income tax 6(a) (4,578) (5,101)
FREE Loss for the year (52,478) (56,515)
THALERN: Attributable to:
ARAEEERER Equity shareholders of the company (52,000) (56,515)
FERER Non-controlling interests (478) _
FREE Loss for the year (52,478) (56,515)
BRER Loss per share 10
HARR#E Basic and diluted $(0.18) $(0.20)
FOAZ164E ZMEBAMBHRR 2 -8 - BE The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these financial
AATEZBREEEERNERBIENBREEEHEN statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
MEEE24(b) o of the company attributable to the loss for the year are set out in
note 24(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-_Z—tLF=A=1t—HILFE (JUBEHIR) For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
Mt = T T
Note $/000 $000
FRER  losfortheyer (271 - (56,515).
FrRHEMEEKE Other comprehensive income for
(f0BrTE) the year (after tax) 9
RIEFEGEEEH 7EE  Item that may be reclassified
BmZIEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
BEEBEINMBALAT  Exchange differences on translation of
SRR 2ERZMH financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong (11,788) (14,362)
RIEBHKTEEZF HEZF Item that will not be reclassified to
BmZzHEE - profit or loss:
FIEBR T REEY 2 Surplus on revaluation of land and
EREER buildings held for own use 20,011 14,984
N, 8223 | 622
FREEWSHATE Total comprehensive income for the year (44,255) (55,893)
THALER: Attributable to:
RAATEZRE Equity shareholders of the company (43,777) (55,893)
FERESR Non-controlling interests (478) _
FRETHEKEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year (44,255) (55,893)
FOAZTAEZMEBARYBHRR -2 ° The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZT—+&=A=+—0 (LL#B¥F|’R) At 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016

M &£ T T T Fr

Note $’000 $’000 $000 $000
FRBEE Non-current assets
REYE Investment properties 11 155,855 146,415
M BERRE Property, plant and equipment 11 398,617 390,375
REERR 2R Interest in an associate 13 _ 851
REg LRz &R Interest in a joint venture 14 - -
HiwEE Other assets 15 21,397 22,595
BELEFMBHREE Deferred tax assets 21(b) 3,831 6,187

579,700 566,423

MEEE Current assets
=7E Inventories 16 53,635 57,700
EWRA R EMEWRST  Trade and other receivables 17 30,343 37,528
AEERIE Tax recoverable 21(a) 772 1,688
BERIIBTER Cash and bank deposits 18(a) 83,318 138,983
__________________________ 168,068 235,899
REBEE Current liabilities
FEAERMREMENT  Trade and other payables 19 41,690 48,460
FEFFiE Tax payable 21(a) 968 1,286
BEMBITER Secured bank loans 22 7,654 8,236
s Provisions 23 13,014 12,149
... 3,326 70031
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RoZ—+&=A=+—H (JAB5IR) At 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E—+tF —E-RF
2017 2016
B aE T T T T
Note $’000 $000 $000 $000
REBEEFE Net current assets 104,742 165,768
EERABDEGHAE Total assets less current
liabilities 684,442 732,191
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EIEFEHER Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 77,947 73,403
EEFRE NET ASSETS 606,495 658,788
BEXRHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 24(c) 2,880 2,880
18 Reserves 603,493 655,908
KATRERERBRE Total equity attributable to
PR AR R equity shareholders of the
company 606,373 658,788
FEREDS Non-controlling interests 122 -
BRRER TOTAL EQUITY 606,495 658,788
ESER-E—EFAAST N\ BRELFFAIED - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 June 2017.
)
)
) #E = Directors
R ER R ®RI5E )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
FOAR 14 E B A BIHRE 2 — 2D o The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these financial
statements.
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BE-Z—+F=A=+—BILEE (WUBE5|R) For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARARRRRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the company
1#E
BEN
R Efifif
BHLR Land and BRR
R& RiER 2tk Eiff Statutory buildings REEA FERER &
Share Share Other Exchange reserve  revaluation Retained @5 Non-controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
i3 T T T T T T i i T T
Note §'000 $'000 §1000 §000 §'000 §'000 §000 §000 §'000 §'000
R-§-1% Balance as at 1 April 2015
mA-BzE&H 2,880 65,327 121 44,457 9,336 304,465 302,491 729,077 - 729,077
ZZ-E5F/-~F Changes in equity for 2015/16:
2RHRE:
ERER Loss for the year - - - - - - (56,515) (56,515) - (56,515)
B 2EUE Other comprehensive income 9 - - - (14,362) - 14,984 - 622 - 622
2ERBEE Total comprehensive income - - - (14,362) - 14,984 (56,515) (55,893 - (55,893)
FECHEZRE  Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year 24(b)ii) - - - - - - (11,517) (11,517) - (11,517)
REECERZRE Dividend declared in respect of
the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - - - (2,879) (2,879) - (2,879)

WZE-RE=F Balance at 31 March 2016
=t-BzER 2,680 65,327 121 30,095 9,336 319,449 231,580 658,788 - 658,788
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HE-ZT—tF=A=1+—HIFE (LAB#% %K) For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
FRRRERRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the company
1#R
EEN
R Efifif
BHOR Land and BRR
Bx RiER Hithi% Eiff Statutory buildings REER FERES i
Share Share Other Exchange reserve  revaluation Retained @3t Non-controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
LiF:: T T i T T T i T T T
Note §'000 §'000 §000 §000 §'000 §'000 §000 §000 $'000 §1000
R-§-xE Balance as at 1 April 2016
BA-B&R 2,680 65,327 121 30,095 9,336 319,449 231,580 658,788 - 658,788
ZB-RE/—tF Changes in equity for 2016/17:
ZEEEE:
EREE Loss for the year = = - - - - (52,000 (52,000 (478) (52,478)
b2 EhE Other comprehensive income 9 - - - (11,788) = 20,011 = 8,223 = 8,223
2EUREE Total comprehensive income = = = (11,788) = 20,011 (52,000) 43,777) (478) (44,255)
FERBEEE  Contribution from a non-controlling
shareholder - - - - - - - - 600 600
FECHEZRE  Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year 24(b)(ii) - - - - - - (5,759) (5,759) - (5,759)
REEBERZRE Dividend declared in respect of
e ecwrentyer MO0 - oo cozozo. M 0¥ - BN
RZZ-tFZA  Balance at 31 March 2017
St-BrEs 2,880 65,327 1 18,307 9,336 339,460 170,942 606,373 m 606,495
BAZAE ZMEBAY KRR 28D ° The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these financial
statements.
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HE-_ZT—tE=A=1+—HIFE (JA#E%7FR) For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—2—tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
Mt = Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note $’000 $000 $7000 $000

REEH Operating activities
L E T A 238 € Cash used in operations 18(h) (35,025) (22,817)
[SARE 2 Tax paid

—REIFEBFEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax

refunded 763 1,291
-BBRIEH ~ Income tax outside Hong
e Kong paid (1,444) (1,182)

RETHMAZ Net cash used in operating

&3R8 activities (35,706) (22,708)
REED Investing activities
BAYME - BWER Payment for purchase of

BXENEN property, plant and equipment (9,206) (12,467)
HEWE - BMER  Proceeds from disposal of

RABPTS IR property, plant and equipment = 251
HEBE NTFE  Proceeds from disposal of an

HIE associate 650 -
S &=\ Interest received 1,103 2,464
RETBRAZ Net cash used in investing

&3R8 activities (7,453) (9,752)
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HE-_Z—tLF=A=1t—HILFE (JUBEHIR) For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
ik Fi T Fr T
Note $’000 $’000 $000 $/000
METH Financing activities
2fRE Interest paid (185) (158)
SRR T ER Dividends paid to equity
BRRzZERE shareholders of the company (8,638) (14,396)
FEBRER2EE  Contribution from a
non-controlling shareholder 600 -
HERBRTERZ Proceeds from new bank loans
IECE/S] - 8,720
EBERTER Repayment of bank loans (582) (484)
MEFTBRAZ Net cash used in financing
HE&FHE activities (8,805) (6,318)
ReRELE Net decrease in cash and cash
EMRELFE equivalents (51,964) (38,778)
RENZHER Cash and cash equivalents at
ReEEY beginning of the year 138,983 183,892
EXgB 28 Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes (3,701) (6,131)
RERZRER Cash and cash equivalents at
ReZEEY end of the year 18(a) 83,318 138,983
FoAZRI4E CMEBAUBHRER 2 -2 - The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FTESHEE
@ #EHEH

ZEVBEBRRCEREBEFTMAENE
MABER Z(EBMBRELEL) (LK
BMESMEERZERN(E B BIREE
By (BEREFEIRERR) BB
REFTRAREB(RARG) 2 KER
EMFmEE - ZEPBRRIFE(EBH
EXGMERLDEZLHRAD 2ER
REAE - AEBRANETESFHHER
BRTX-

BREEMMASCEME THERERS
AIH(EBMBHREER)  ARAER
RARNR 2 A G B ERERL A
RERH - RASTHERBEZSTH
B EYRERZSEANEE AR 2 %R
LOMEREHBREBD2ENCTRBR
EZEUBHRRD  LERMEEC) -

b) BBBRZANLE
BE-Z—tF=A=1+-HLEEZ
FANBRRBEAAARAKNEAR
(G788 [ S ) bR 7 8 A B 8 2
AREE LR 2 o

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by

the group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
group and the company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017 comprise the company and its

subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”) and

the group’s interest in an associate and a joint venture.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(f)); and

- other leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a

finance lease (see notes 1(g) and 1(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the

financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The
group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
company, and in respect of which the group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

(e)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the company. Non-controlling

interests in the results of the group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the company.

Changes in the group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

In the company’s statement of financial position (note
29), an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the group or
company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the group
or company and other parties contractually agree to

share control of the arrangement, and have rights to

the net assets of the arrangement.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 1(i)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas
the group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with
the group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the group’s net investment in the associate or

the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the group and its associates and
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

®

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in joint venture or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, when the group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial

asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from

investment properties is accounted for as described in

note 1(r)(ii).
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

(g

Investment properties (continued)

When the group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note
1(h).

Other property, plant and equipment

The land held for own use classified as being held
under finance lease and buildings thereon (see note
1(h)) are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

—  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the land and buildings revaluation reserve to

retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired

terms of lease and their estimated useful lives,

being 50 years from the date of completion.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

(h)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

- Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of
5 years and the
period of the lease

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

-  Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment
- Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by the group under leases
which transfer to the group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group are classified as

operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property
basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a

finance lease (see note 1(f)); and

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first

entered into by the group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges
Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note 1(f)).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at each end of the
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the group about

one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal

payments;
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in fair
value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(e)), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note
1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the

estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with note 1(i)(ii).
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment (other than

properties carried at revaluated amounts);

- Interest in an associate and a joint venture;

and
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Interest in subsidiaries in the company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in

use (if determinable).
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1. EEGTEEE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() EBEEREGE) (i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) BrEERE (&) (ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— FEEREED - Reversals of impairment losses
MWERUBETWRESEN G An impairment loss is reversed if there has
St ARNEL ERBE been a favourable change in the estimates
EREEIEEE - FiEE 8 used to determine the recoverable amount.
BEEBUBSSEEEERS A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
BEGETECEENEEE the asset’s carrying amount that would have
TS EBE o FEE 8 RES been determined had no impairment loss

46 75 FE 2 88 B 1) 4 B po IS been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
= E Y I N\ =

impairment losses are credited to profit or

Bk o
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) A EG R 3R & R Bl B (iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
RBE(BEBHEXZMERAAES Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
LKA AEBEBARBE(EES Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
STEERI) 34k [ H A B B 3 & | 5 Limited, the group is required to prepare an
BHEEENE B FE P HI B KR interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
Lo AMEEER  AEFEEBR 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
R EESARERR B —RE first six months of the financial year. At the end
BE - R EBEESE (BHEG of the interim period, the group applies the same
R (i) o impairment testing, recognition, and reversal

criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).
() *wE (j) Inventories

FEURAR TSR FEMEHHRE Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

AR - realisable value.

KA SR ESE  EhEEFREER Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula

BRA s MIRAREESHEZE A and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

B 84 5 IR AR A9 E M B A o conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

AHEFESUASEEBRER YL Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in

EERESREER R EFEN LR the ordinary course of business less the estimated

KEFESH - costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

0]

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with

any interest and fee payable, using the effective

interest method.
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(q)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

(ii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises

restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(f), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is

reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and

movements therein, are presented separately from

each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are

offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax

assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the company or

the group has the legally enforceable right to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
company or the group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

-  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

()

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within trade and other
payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss

on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(q)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customers have
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the amount

receivable can be measured reliably.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements

are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

company’s functional and presentation currency.
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1. FEESHBX(E) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) INEBRE(E) (s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(i) FRANMEXZEXZ BNERER

(ii) Foreign currency transactions during the year are

Ho-LUNMBARBEANNEBEERE
BARRENRNERRE - ER
BEOBABRERER -

BBREREUIIEREVZHES
MEEREE BXZBAZEXRR
HoUDARBESRLUIMEREN
HFEEENEEREEEAERER
REERERZERFH -

BHCECEKBRETRZERZ
SIMERBNCERBRERBY
RN RIER MRBREHR 2K
MERBESBE MELZER
ERNAEMEEBREER - LRAR
RS CELHER LR -

EHEEBRMNERE BZEFB
BOEBEBRCRAELEZHER
BRHEZENREERHRRE
mEHOBERER -

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately

in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation outside
Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the group;

(ii) has significant influence over the group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the group or the group’s

parent.

(2) An entity is related to the group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity.
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1. EEGEE(E) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) FEBAL(E) (u) Related parties (continued)
2) fHAEFETIMEMES  BNEREE (2) An entity is related to the group if any of the
BHEEE : (&) following conditions applies: (continued)
(v BERASENNREEAHEZ (v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
ERBEEFNER I 2EHBE for the benefit of employees of either the
AEtE o group or an entity related to the group.
(vi) BERI)FAEATEHNRZ (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
HEES - by a person identified in (1).

(vi) ROOFEBIALTHEREE (vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
%;%bﬁ%%ig (RZE
ZBAR)TEEEERE

“IE

influence over the entity or is a member of
= © the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) BERREBEBNEIARE (viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
AFEAEESIEAEBNE L which it is a part, provides key management
ARETEEBEASRY - personnel services to the group or to the

group’s parent.

BRIAL 2 IERRIERERZERERE Close members of the family of a person are those
ERESBLRBTEEZEANALRE family members who may be expected to influence, or
HYECHKIEMRE - be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 11(c) and 25 contains information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of

properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment in
accordance with the relevant accounting policies. If
such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the
assets would be determined by reference to value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is
determined using the discounted cash flow method.
Due to inherent risk associated with estimations in the
timing and magnitude of the future cash flows and fair
value less costs of disposal, the estimated recoverable
amount of the assets may be different from its actual
recoverable amount and profit or loss could be

affected by the accuracy of the estimations.
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2.  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Provision for onerous operating lease contract

The group recognises a provision for onerous
operating lease contracts based on the estimated
unavoidable costs of meeting all leases and other
obligations under the retail stores, net of economic
benefits expected to be received from the stores, if
any. The group estimates the provision based on the
amount of compensation payment agreed with the
landlord as a result of early termination of leases,
unfulfilled lease obligations, and economic benefits
estimated to be received from fulfilling the lease
contracts. Estimates differ depending on the current
rent, location, lease exit terms and management’s
assessment of when the lease term can be terminated
early and expected benefits to be received from
fulfilling the leases. Except for stores which
termination contracts have already been agreed with
the landlords, the settlement of these contracts may be
different from the group’s estimation subject to the
negotiation with the landlords and the economic

benefits estimated to be received.

Write-down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review,
write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories decline below their
estimated net realisable value. Due to changes in
market trends, actual consumption may be different

from estimation and profit or loss could be affected by

accuracy of this estimation.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

®

Valuation of investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
and land and buildings for own use are calculated by
an independent firm of surveyors by making reference
to the rental yields and comparable market
transactions. The valuation models used by the
property valuer make use of market inputs. Should
changes be made to the market inputs, the
corresponding investment properties and land and

buildings held for own use valuations would change.

Impairment of trade debtors

If objective evidence indicates that the carrying
amount of trade debtors may not be recoverable, the
assets may be considered “impaired” and an
impairment loss may be recognised. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the group about loss events
such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor. If
there is a change in the objective evidence of
impairment in relation to the debtors, the actual
impairment loss would be higher or lower than the
allowance for doubtful debts recognised in the

financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(g

Taxation, indirect taxes and duties

Determining the provision for income tax, indirect
taxes and duties involves judgement, including the
interpretation and application of tax and other
legislation, on the future treatment of certain
transactions. The group carefully evaluates the tax and
other implications of transactions and, provisions are
set up accordingly. The treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in, including interpretation of, tax and other
legislation. Where the final outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
provisions in the year in which such determination is

made.

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Revenue
The principal activities of the group are the design,
manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion apparel

and accessories.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.

Segment reporting

The group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
group has presented the following two reportable

segments. No operating segments have been aggregated

to form the following reportable segments.
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(i)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of

house brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

The Outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China
and sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation of assets attributable
to those segments. However, assistance provided
by one segment to another, including sharing of

assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reportable segment loss is
loss from operations with the exception of other
revenue and net gain. Income tax is not allocated

to reportable segments.

Segment assets and liabilities of the group are not
reported to the group’s most senior executive
management regularly. As a result, reportable
segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in these financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable

segments are the same as the group’s accounting

policies described in note 1.
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3. WEKkoHBRSE (&) 3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) ZEEE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) BB () (i) Segment results (continued)
BE-Z—tER=-ZT—-~E=A Information regarding the group’s reportable
=+—HLEFE EERLAKEEFR segments as provided to the group’s most senior
SITHEEASEEHEMUIEE executive management regularly for the purposes
BRAGIBRAZAEEETE of resource allocation and assessment of segment
o2 EREHIMT ¢ performance for the years ended 31 March 2017

and 2016 is set out below:

B EREN EH

Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
“E-tF SF-AF ZB-tF SF-RF SB-tF ZE-RF
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

fx fx fx Fx  Fx =%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

MREP YR Revenue from external customers 150,379 181,624 130,018 146,372 280,397 327,99
2 EE KR Inter-segment revenue 31,108 29,503 29,481 39,278 60,589 68,781
BATEHHHBKE Reportable segment revenue 181,487 211,127 159,499 185650 340,986 396,777
ATEHRDIHWEE Reportable segment loss (34,086)  (25222)  (33,158)  (47,799)  (67,244)  (73,021)
RITEHZ Interest income from bank deposits

FEBA 307 61 780 1,938 1,087 1,999
BMERK Finance costs (185) (158) = - (185) (158)
ERHE Depreciation for the year (9,929)  (10,255) (9,056)  (10,912)  (18,985)  (21,167)
WE BERRKE  Impairment losses on property,

ZHEFE plant and equipment (1,263) (1,776) (1,564) (5,303) (2,827) (7,079)
EREEHESL  Net (provision for)/reversal of onerous

(B45) /BEBE  operating lease contracts (1,958) (2,884) 1,093 (4,620) (865) (7,504)
FEWERF 2 FE  Reversal of/(provision for) impairment

BIREE,/ (B4) losses on trade debtors - - 490 (517) 490 (517)

%% FMAFHER Provision for impairment loss on
HiEWHAE  deposits, prepayment and other
EERE receivables (1,285) - = - (1,285) _
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3. WERDEEE (&) 3.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) ZWHRE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) BFEHR7BUmREBEZEHK (i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue and
loss
—E-tF —E-RF
2017 2016
T Fr
$’000 $000
W = Revenue
REBTF2HOIB2EUE Total revenue from reportable segments 340,986 396,777
73 B 18 Uk % 1 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (60,589) (68,781)
e E Consolidated revenue 280,397 327,996
B8 Loss
BATFE2HROBEE Reportable segment loss (67,244) (73,021)
H g AR W F5E Other revenue and net gain 12,109 10,713
B & pR AN Finance costs (185) (158)
BREMEZHERES Valuation gains on investment properties 9,440 14,420
BFEEBRLTHE Valuation gains on land and buildings
BEY2EERS held for own use 612 1,138
BB E AR ZER Share of loss of an associate - (419)
EheE A ARZER Share of loss of a joint venture (2,632) (4,087)

BRI A RS R 18 Consolidated loss before taxation (47,900) (51,414)
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3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the group’s
investment properties, property, plant and
equipment, interest in an associate and a joint
venture (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided

or the goods were delivered. The geographical

(HBRBME AT RESE NG 2 location of the specified non-current assets is
#w®) MEE ° based on the physical location of the asset, in the
case of investment properties and property, plant
and equipment, and the location of operations, in
the case of interest in an associate and a joint
venture.
HPREF W EEFRRBEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—E—+tF —E-RE —E—+tF —E-RF
2017 2016 2017 2016
Fr T Fr T
$000 $'000 $7000 $'000
=8 Hong Kong 150,379 181,624 388,874 377,125
AR A b Mainland China 43,591 60,125 160,270 154,902
BE Taiwan 31,622 34,993 514 782
B Macau 44,860 41,438 4,714 4,037
3N Singapore 9,945 9,816 100 795
e 130,018 146372 165,598 160,516,
280,397 327,996 554,472 537,641

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 M 47 B 2 #®]

99




Moiselle International Holdings Limited % ¥ B B2 4 M 45 B 2 5]
Annual Report 2017 4 &4

S 2 st o B ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

100

(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. WBERDEBEE (&) 3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) ZEEE (&)

(iv) EEEFEEFZEHN
BE_Z-tHER-Z—~"¥5=R
Et-RLEE BEXBE-H
REFZWSREREERFZREZ

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(iv) Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2016, there was no single external customer that

contributed 10% or more of the group’s total

10%3 A £ o revenue.
4. HtW AR Wz 4.  OTHER REVENUE AND NET GAIN
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
H il A Other revenue
RITFERZFE WA Interest income from bank deposits 1,087 1,999
REVEHSRALREE Gross rental income from investment
properties 5,076 4,931
BR 7% & WA Service fee income 950 951
Hity Others 944 1,042
8,057 8,923
Hfto 25 7 88 Other net gain
HEWE BERREBZ Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,
(F518) W= FE plant and equipment (2) 122
HEBE AR ZWREFE Net gain on disposal of an associate
(H1aE13) (note 13) 949 _
0E 5 W &5 8 58 Net exchange gain 3,105 1,668
4,052 1,790
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5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—E—tHF —E-KREF
2017 2016
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
(@) AERA (@) Finance costs
RITERK Interest on bank loans and bank
RITBRZFE advances 185 158
by BEIRK(TEE (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
BEEME (HF7)) emoluments (note 7))
REMFRIK B 2 H Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 6,185 7,163
HFe IERHEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 83,732 92,375
89,917 99,538
(co HftEHE (c) Other items
B A & Auditors’ remuneration
— B R T% — audit services 1,689 2,054
—H R — other services = 202
e Depreciation 18,985 21,167
M- BERRME Impairment losses on property,
ZREEE plant and equipment 2,827 7,079
FE U BR AR 2 R B 5 18 (Reversal of)/provision for impairment
(B@),BE losses on trade debtors (490) 517
RE  BARIER Provision for impairment losses on
Hits B2 deposits, prepayment and other
REEERE receivables 1,285 -
BEKEHESY Net provision for onerous operating
BEERE lease contracts 865 7,504
THREEY 2KE Operating lease charges in respect
HEEH of land and buildings
-REHAETR — minimum lease payments 126,204 142,504
-HEHEE — contingent rentals 7,892 9,427
FEW IR E W) £ MR Rentals receivable from investment
B 5 206,0007T properties less direct outgoings of
—ZE—"%¥ :317,0007T) $206,000 (2016: $317,000) (4,870) (4,614)
TFEMA (FaF160)) Cost of inventories® (note 16(b)) 60,798 73,387
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. KRBIATEE (&) 5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
(c) HtbEE () (c) Other items (continued)

: FERAF19,173,000T (ZF— X ’ Cost of inventories includes $19,173,000 (2016:
£ 123,844,000T)  BIEE IR $23,844,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
FERELEHESR  BEEENC operating lease charges, which amount is also included
LA LRDBIFIRS M EES (b)Y & 585 in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
SHEEER o above or in note 5(b) for each of these types of

expenses.
6. BABBEFTRZFAES 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS
Q) BABRREFRZFERS: (@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
Fr T
$/000 $'000
B R-BFRBFEHR Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 71 998
BEEEREBTRE Under/(over)-provision in respect of
(HBRERE) prior years 56 (85)
________________________________________________________________________________________ 127 13
REABLIE - B BRI Current tax — Outside Hong Kong
REERE Provision for the year 1,210 2,333
BEFEBBAREB Over-provision in respect of prior years = (280)
______________________________________________________________________________________ 1,210 2,053
EEFEH Deferred tax
TEMERE2ELERER  Origination and reversal of temporary
(K1aE21(b)) differences (note 21(b)) 3,241 2,135




6. HEBBRARZAEB (&)

(@)

RERBERMRZMERS : ()

Rt E2HBFEHBENRIE
FRZMEERRRR (LT RBEBE
ATHREBREFR_-ZT—X/—+t&F
A FECEAREZEZERM75% (8
HER FRE20,0008 7)) #16.5% (=
E—RF 165%)FE - FEARKEAM
THE)REIMBLAR ZRIE DR
HEFEAEEEEA 2 RTHREGE -

BE-Z—tF=A=+-HLFEH
B RAPE - BERIFIEZHEAR
ZBABERD B H2% (ZF—RF
25%) ~17% (ZZ—RE 1 17%) B17%
(ZE—RF 1 17%) °

BRI EM32,0008M T (FHE
31,0005 7t) B4R 74 300,0002F9 7T (18
E 291,000/ 70) WEBRRBAEN T
3%BI%MBEB MM MESSER
REERZE1N2%HH - BE-ZT—tFR
“E-ARFEZA=+-HLEE  BMK
RETHRFEZBRMRER  ERBBA
# % B8 £600,000 F T (HER
582,000 7t) + # H600,00052 P9 7T (48
E 582,000 7T) B FE R T % Al Bl 32 &
EFE12%HF ©
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6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is
calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, taking into account a
reduction granted by Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2016/17 subject to
a maximum reduction of $20,000 for each business.
Taxation for the People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC”) and overseas subsidiaries are charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the

relevant tax jurisdictions.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the applicable
tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC, Taiwan
and Singapore are 25% (2016: 25%), 17% (2016:
17%) and 17% (2016: 17%) respectively.

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income
above MOP32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000) but
below MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and
thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended
31 March 2017 and 2016, a special complementary
tax incentive was provided to the effect that the tax
free income threshold was MOP600,000 (equivalent to
HK$582,000) with profit above MOP600,000
(equivalent to HK$582,000) being taxed at a fixed rate
of 12%.
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6. MEBBRRARZAEHR (F)
@ HREBBRARZIABHRR  (H)

MRIFEGARER  BRIAEEAFEEER
RABZHECEE_SZTLF+A
=+ -B2BEEZEANMEEZARIR
10%BL RMMIBINF - HRAEBE
ErEYHEBIMAIZHMBLRE
BEXERE HETERBENBRERMERAZ
BB ERE%  c HARNEEEERET
B#RDIRZERF > FrAREE L &
DIRZERBGEFEN 2HBERREL
HEEE10,899,000 (Z B — KF:
11,677,00075) °

(b) BEXHESHBEERBARRTEZ

6.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

The group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from the
group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As all
of the group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly
and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, a reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the
calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred tax
liabilities of $10,899,000 (2016: $11,677,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits
since these earnings are not intended to be distributed

in the foreseeable future.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

Eal loss at applicable tax rates:
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
T Fr
$/000 $’000
FR %L Al S 18 Loss before taxation (47,900) (51,414)
BREMHBERESEEEES Notional tax on loss before taxation,
EEMNBERAREHERB  calculated at the rates applicable to
AIEEzBERE losses in the tax jurisdictions concerned (7,732) (7,984)
RAfE L o R e Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,223 4,101
BASABIWA 2B e Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (2,581) (1,313)
FERBBEE BT E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised,
HBRAFECE A& net of utilisation during the year 11,612 10,162
BAFECHERAZBIEEE Reversal of deferred tax arising from tax
FREE 2 EER IR E losses recognised in prior years = 500
BAEERBERR Under/(over)-provision in respect of
(BEERE) prior years 56 (365)
BERBIELH Actual tax expense 4,578 5,101
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7. EEME 7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
BIESEB(ATEFYEISNER AT (FHE Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
ESNREN RPE-RNRECESH S0 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
I Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
i
2UR
ENEA BAK
Salaries, BE-R:E
EEZHe allowances [RREEAN Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme st
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Tr T T T T
$000 $000 $’000 $000 $000
“E-tF 2017
HITEE Executive directors
BERA Chan Yum Kit = 6,381 = 18 6,399
®IneE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 4,575 - 18 4,593
RE % Chan Sze Chun = 798 = 18 816
BUFHTEZE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 = = = 60
PNV Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - _ _ 60
BEME Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 11,754 - 54 11,988
ZE-R%¥ 2016
HiTEZE Executive directors
B Chan Yum Kit - 5,391 - 18 5,409
BnE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 4,079 - 18 4,097
#hER Chui Hing Yee (passed away on 29
(RZZ—R%E September 2015)
NAZthAE
B i) - 2,067 - 9 2,076
RE®K Chan Sze Chun - 811 - 18 829
BUHHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
REZ Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
KRB Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
PR Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,348 - 63 12,591
e RURBYEANEERNESRHEzEE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
THREBEYWZHERS2,160,000T (ZF amount of $2,160,000 (2016: $2,527,000) which represents
—7~4% 1 2,527,0007T) ° the market rental value of own land and buildings provided
to directors.
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8. BEMEAL 8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
BN (ZE—ARF HEVN)BEHMEALTF B Of the five (2016: five) individuals with the highest
N (ZEBE—RE =) ESE2HMEERHE7 emoluments, two (2016: three) are directors whose
EHIKE - HER=U (Z2—XRF W) AL emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
ZHEBEBENT emoluments in respect of the other three (2016: two)

individuals are as follows:

—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
F Tt
$7000 $’000
HeRHEHAMEE Salaries and other emoluments 4,794 2,497
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 83 33
BORETEIH R Retirement scheme contributions 54 36
4,931 2,566
ZE(ZE—RF M) BERE AL 2B The emoluments of the three (2016: two) individuals with
EHETHEER : the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals
—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
1,000,001t —1,500,0007T $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 2 2

2,000,0017t —2,500,0007T $2,000,001 - $2,500,000 1 -
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9. HftZmEUWsE 9.  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
H2EHBBERBO2HBELE Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income
ZE-tF “E-RE
2017 2016
BB Al BB % BRBA BRB#%
8 BEEX ¢85 8  HERX £
Before tax Tax Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount  expense amount
Tr Tr T T T i
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BREEBEIMELR Exchange differences on translation
BHERRzERER of financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong (11,788) - (11,788) (14,362) - (14,362)
FEEATHRESEN 2  Surplus on revaluation of land
EfhRH% and buildings held for own use 23,670 (3,659) 20,011 18,573 (3,589) 14,984
Hit2EWR Other comprehensive income 11,882 (3,659) 8,223 4211 (3,589) 622
10. BREE 10. LOSS PER SHARE
@ BREXRER (@) Basic loss per share

(b)

g FBE B A i 18 7 AR A A D O i R A
JBEHRE A 5 1E52,000,0007T (& — N4
56,515,0007C) K A 4F B E 88 47 % 28 [’k n
HE T 44 #287,930,000 (= ZF — /N 4F ¢
287,930,000/1%) 515 -

SREEESE

Mt eE —F—LEL T —RFE=H
b H kR AR B A B R B T
R T EEN . NI E —E L E R
TN A = BB AR 2
T e 45 5 S LA s AR AR ] -

(b)

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
company of $52,000,000 (2016: $56,515,000) and the
weighted average number of 287,930,000 (2016:
287,930,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 as
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2016.
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11. W¥E - - BERSZBURKREYXE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
(@) FREEHE (@) Reconciliation of carrying amount
EUNEY
#B ERR
WA R B HLEEE
HEERZ RAE
THREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures,
buildings computer
held  I¥£E  andoffice BENE
for own use REH  equipment £ RENE
carried at Plantand  and motor Leasehold PNEF Investment s
fairvalue  machinery vehicles improvements ~ Sub-total ~properties Total
T r i r r i i
§'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
HAREE: Cost or valuation:
RZE-RERA-H At 1 April 2015 372,027 5,362 23,457 61,551 462,417 126,509 588,926
EiRE Exchange adjustments (3,019 207) (231) 637) (4,094) - (4004
BE Additions - - 1,646 10,621 12,467 - 12,467
i3 Disposals - (697) (1,159) (16,430) (18,286) - (18,286)
EffRS Surplus on revaluation 18,573 - - - 18,573 - 18573
B BRITEHE Less: Elimination of accumulated depreciation (10,128) - - - (10,128) - (10128)
MfERE Fair value adjustment 1138 - - - 1138 14420 15558
HIBREENERZRENE  Transfer from land and buildings to investment
properties (5,486) - - - (5,486) 5,486 -
RZE-AEZB=1-H At 31 March 2016 373,105 4478 23913 55,105 456,601 146,415 603,016
fik: Representing:
RE Cost - 4478 23,913 55,105 83,496 - 83,496
tE-—E-1E Valuation - 2016 373,105 - - - 373,105 146,415 519,520
373,105 4,478 23,913 55,105 456,601 146,415 603,016
RZE-AERA-H At 1 April 2016 373,105 4478 23913 55,105 456,601 146,415 603,016
EX3% Exchange adjustments (3,067) (179) (220) (760) (4,226) - (420
HE Additions - - 176 9,030 9,206 - 9,206
HE Disposals - - 7 (14,984) (14,991) - (14,991
EffER Surplus on revaluation 23,670 - - - 23,670 - 3,670
B BT ESS Less: Elimination of accumulated depreciation (10,416) - - - (10,416) - (10,416)
LMERR Fair value adjustment 612 - - - 612 9440 10,052
HoZ-t£zp=1-8 At 31 March 2017 383,904 499 B8 BT 460456 155855 616311
R&: Representing:
BA Cost - 4299 23,862 48,391 76,552 - 76,552
E-ZE-t& Valuation - 2017 383,904 - - - 383,904 155,855 539,759
383,904 4,299 23,862 48,391 460,456 155,855 616,311
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11. WE - BERSZBULRKREYE (& 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(a) FREEHIER (&) (@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
G B
#E ERR
WA R ESIE HLEERE
BlEERZ RAE
THREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures,
buildings computer
held  I¥KE  and office BENE
for own use R#H  equipment £ RENE
carried at Plantand  and motor Leasehold N Investment @y
fairvalue  machinery vehicles  improvements  Sub-total  properties Total
r r r r n r r
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
2 ERAE: Accumulated depreciation and impairment;
RZE-TEMB-R At1 April 2015 - 4135 18,291 44424 66,850 - 66,850
Ej@E Exchange adjustments - (155) (174) (256) (585) - (585)
REEHE Charge for the year 10,128 217 1,915 8,907 21,167 - 21167
HEEE Impairment losses - - - 7,079 7,079 - 7,079
HERRR Written back on disposals - (620) (1,115) (16,422) (18,157) - (18157)
EfERHE Elimination on revaluation (10,128) - - - (10,128) - (10,128)
REF-AFZAST-A  AMach206 D] 31T . 8917 .. I S 06226 . o, 06226
RZE-AERA-H At1 Apri[ 2016 - 3,577 18,917 43,732 66,226 - 66,226
EX3E Exchange adjustments - (142) (173) (479) (794) - (794)
REERE Charge for the year 10,416 100 1,793 6,676 18,985 - 18,985
HEEE Impairment losses = = = 2,827 2,807 = 2,807
HERER Written back on disposals = = (5) (14,984) (14,989) - (14,989)
BiEBYHE Elimination on revaluation (10,416) - - - (10,416) - (10,416)
ZBCRIASRCE AdMeddV SMBL Wy e L
BEZE: Net ook value:
RZE-tE=f=1-H At 31 March 2017 383,904 764 3,330 10,619 398,617 155,855 554,472
R-E-xE=B=t-H At 31 March 2016 373,105 901 499 11,373 390,375 146,415 536,790

RZBE—+tF=ZA=+—0 KEEA
23,180,0007C (=& — 7~ & : 22,500,000
T 2T EEEVNERBITERERIK
(R MEE22) °

At 31 March 2017, land and buildings with carrying
amounts of $23,180,000 (2016: $22,500,000) were

pledged against bank loans (see note 22).
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1. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

(b) WEEBE

R-ZB—tF BEBEBEREBRINER
ETHReEEENHREEHE  BERIEREY
¥ -BERRETELREHE Bt &
ECEHEBEYE  BERRZREZTWE
ME MEBREEZREBECHRZERS
ZAWERIEBE T (ZF—75F 602,000
JT) o BEEE2,827,000T (=& — X
% :7,079,0007t) ER[EER 7 A
WHER - TIREIRIEDRIEZSEEMS
BreReELBENZFREBIZRERE
13.5% (ZF—RF 1 13.5%) fh5t °

(0 MEZDAEFE
(i) RAEER
TREJNAEEMWERNREHREZ
REMEEGENAAE  WLER
BEBMBERELE 135 [ALE
B INERSR=BALIABER -
DAABEFNBERD 2 RAEBERMA
BEENTHREMENEZES BN
T

— B-RMHE EERAE-AH
B AnE  BREER
HEERTSUEREERA
BERERAENRE

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment losses

In 2017, certain cash-generating units of the Hong
Kong operation and Outside Hong Kong operation
recorded losses which indicate the related property,
plant and equipment might have been impaired. As a
result, the directors reviewed the recoverable amount
of the relevant property, plant and equipment and the
carrying amount of such assets was written down to
their recoverable amount of $Nil (2016: $602,000).
An impairment loss of $2,827,000 (2016: $7,079,000)
was recognised in “selling and distribution costs”. The
estimates of recoverable amount were based on value
in use of the cash-generating units to which these
assets belong at a discount rate of 13.5% (2076:
13.5%).

Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
group’s properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used

in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted

quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the measurement date
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1. Y& BERSEURREWE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(c) MEZAAREBEE(E) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) RAEZR(E) (i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

— BRMHE:ERE-RBE
SAEMNORE IFAFEE—

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured

using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs

AW EBRBERABRAT which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
TEENEZRE THESE '
%FE?“E%HM:FE%E%@#E’J significant unobservable inputs.
E-2NES B/ <F Y
24 Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available
— BZHME EATTEEH - Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
EZHBRENDRE using significant unobservable inputs
RoE—t & BR-Z2-tH=A=t+—-H
=A=+-—~H ZDREFETER
TARME Fair value measurements as at
Fair value at 31 March 2017 categorised into
31 March E—& -t} E=8
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fr Fr Tr Tr
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EEUERAARETE Recurring fair value
measurement
REME Investment properties:
&% - Hong Kong 67,939 - - 67,939
— A - Mainland China 87,916 = = 87,916
KFEERZLIH Land and buildings held
KR for own use:
-5 - Hong Kong 315,481 = = 315,481

—hE R i — Mainland China 68,423 = = 68,423
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1. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&) 11.

() MEZAREREHE)

(i) RAEERE)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(o

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

BR-Z2-R¥=A=t-H

R-B-R%F
=A=t-7 2DAEHBSER
SARE Fair value measurements as at
Fair value at 31 March 2016 categorised into
31 March B E-® E
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EEMRAAEFE  Recurring fair value
measurement
REME Investment properties:
-BE - Hong Kong 62,831 - = 62,831
—HhE R - Mainland China 83,584 - - 83,584
FEBRzLH Land and buildings held for
REZEY own use:
-B8 - Hong Kong 305,068 - - 305,068
—hE R — Mainland China 68,037 - - 68,037
BE-—_ZE—+tHE=A=+—HI=E During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no

E B-ARE-RHLESE
B TREF=ZFNBAREL (=
B-RF R) FEERRAER
THRERLOAEERER 2B H®
L ERE-

FEBEREREMERBEERZ
THREEYR-ZF-—tF=A
=St-HEEHMGE HEIFH
¥ 3R 8 AR 1T BRAS B B E R (L RE R
ERDRET RABMITZET
ZTERBIEMEEEE HE
HNEESREEEMGEENEE
RE-HEMERNNNE - FEH
ZEEBRTHEBAESFRNER
EHARETEHERRGEERRRMA
EEREYEEMETHR

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil). The group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

All of the group’s investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use were revalued as at 31
March 2017. The valuations were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, who have among their staff
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. The group’s most senior
executive management has discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each end of
the reporting period annually.



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B B 4 Wl 47 B 2 )
Annual Report 2017 44
MB MR |
Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
11. YE BERREURKREWE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(0 MEZAAEFTE(HE) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) BEZE=ZRIALETEZEHN (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
TABE
hEL* BAHE mEF
Valuation Unobservable #E Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
REBZRENE-IX WABR{LE EXxfx 3.1% - 3.4% 3.2%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZE-RE: (ZE-RE:
- Industrial approach 3.1% - 3.4%) 3.2%)
(2016: 3.1% - 3.4%) (2016: 3.2%)
RAENZRENE-T% LON N 45 EENIAS 4.0% - 6.5% 6.5%
Investment properties in Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZE-RE: (ZE-RE:
- Industrial approach 4.0% - 6.5%) 6.5%)
(2016: 4.0% - 6.5%) (2016: 6.5%)
RbERcRENE-1E L ON- LS| ERLE 4.0% 4.0%
Investment properties in Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZBE-RE: (ZE2E-RE:
- Residential approach 4.0%) 4.0%)
(2016: 4.0%) (2016: 4.0%)
REBREERZIHRBEN-T¥ EENET REZENER -32% - 31% -1.6%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison 2z (8 / (ZE-RE: (ZE-RE:
Hong Kong - Industrial approach w1E -36% - 13%) -5.1%)
(Discount)/premium on ~ (2016: -36% - 13%) (2016: -5.1%)
quality of the buildings
REBREERZIHREEN - BB REENER -22% - 34% 3.3%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison (g / (ZE—-RE: (ZE-RE:
Hong Kong - Residential approach wE -27% - 5%) -13.0%)
(Discount)/premium on ~ (2016: -27% - 5%) (2016: -13.0%)
quality of the buildings
RbBEABEERERZ L ERNEE BEENER -9% - 2% -3.0%
REZEY-T¥ Direct comparison R zirE (ZE-KE: (ZE—-RE:
Land and buildings held for own use in approach Discount on quality 4% - -2%) -3.0%)
Mainland China - Industrial of the buildings ~ (2016: -4% - -2%) (2016: -3.0%)
ReBERBFEER 2L HERBL BEENEE -32% - -5% -8.6%
REZEN-E Direct comparison (i (ZB-RE: (ZB-RE:
Land and buildings held for own use in approach Discount on quality 31% - 0%) 5.3%)
Mainland China - Residential of the buildings (2016: -31% - 0%) (2016: -5.3%)
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

(0 MEZAARETE A
(i) BEEZRILETEZEH
(48
NREBRPEARBBEER 2L
MwREEN 2 XIARETSERRAL
BAFLRNEEHE  RAHD
SEEEEETE -

HEERELEBEMERZEESITE
DS EREENHENLE R -
BENEERRS  RETERS
HEHRAREHELH -

REMEZLAAREDSRBASEH
EEZHEREEERBAREBE
FEMEE -

BB ERERANERCERE
EEEYHAPTSESER 15
ARUREZERVEMFHAE -
AREFERTSHESEERIEE
BE HELARBEERRF -

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

()

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The fair value of land and buildings held for own
use located in Hong Kong and the Mainland
China is determined on an open market value
basis, by making reference to the comparable

sales evidence in the relevant locality.

The premium or discount used in direct
comparison approach is specific to the building
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for
higher quality buildings will result in a higher fair

value measurement.

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by capitalising the current rent
derived from the existing tenancies with the

provision for any revisionary income potential.

The capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation
approach has been adjusted for the expected
market rental growth, occupancy rate and quality
and location of the building. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the

market rent at value and negatively correlated to

the capitalisation rate.
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. VL BERREURREYE (& 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

(0 MEZAAEFTE(HE)

PROPERTIES (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) BEE=ZRKRIALETEZEF (&) (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

FRZEE=ZRL

7

(continued)

BEit 2 &% The movements during the year in the balance of

ZEEMT these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:
—F-tF —
2017 2016
T Tr
$/000 $000
REMKX-FHE Investment properties — Hong Kong:
REA—H At 1 April 62,831 63,104
DNAEHE Fair value adjustment 5,108 (273)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 67,939 62,831
REVE-HERM : Investment properties — Mainland
China:
REA—H At 1 April 83,584 63,405
EREABEERLHT Transfer from land and buildings held
REEY for own use - 5,486
NRERE Fair value adjustment 4,332 14,693
R=A=+—H At 31 March 87,916 83,584
BFEEBRAZLHR Land and buildings held for own use
BEY-FHE - Hong Kong:
RmA—A At1 April 305,068 306,926
FRAME Depreciation charged for the year (8,508) (8,333)
NRERAE Fair value adjustment 612 1,138
BEHAH Surplus on revaluation 18,309 5,337
R=BA=+—H At 31 March 315,481 305,068
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (A)

(0 MEZAREFTE(H)
(i) BEE=ZRILESEZEH (F)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

—E—tF —E-REF

2017 2016

T Fr

$/000 $000

FEBAZLHRESEY  Land and buildings held for own use
—HERH - Mainland China:

RMMA—H At 1 April 68,037 65,101
HRERENFE Transfer to investment properties - (5,486)
ERAE Exchange adjustments (3,067) (3,019)
FRITE Depreciation charged for the year (1,908) (1,795)
ERBR Surplus on revaluation 5,361 13,236

R=A=+—H At 31 March 68,423 68,037
REVMENDIAERBRGEER Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
RIREMEZMHERSE BRTER recognised in the line item “valuation gains on
ABR - investment properties” on the face of the

BB E£23,670,0007T (ZF — N
% 1 18,573,0007T) A EA 2 E K&
ZITHREEYEGHREEIANE
Rof b ziFEE Az L RE
FEMRBABBTIESIE R
Z—tF=A=+—HzEAREH
%90,760,000T (=& — X F :
93,963,0007T) °

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Revaluation surplus of $23,670,000 (2016:
$18,573,000) are recognised in other
comprehensive income in “land and buildings
revaluation reserve”. Had the above land and

buildings held for own use been carried at cost

less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been $90,760,000 (2016:
$93,963,000) at 31 March 2017.
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. NE - BERZEURKREYWE (& 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(d YMEZREFEIHROT: (d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
ZEB—tF ZE-XRF
2017 2016
T Fr
$/000 $000
NEB In Hong Kong
-REHEE - Long leases 179,210 173,079
- HEE - Medium-term leases 198,050 188,480
—EHEE — Short leases 6,160 6,340
BHBEH Outside Hong Kong
- REHEE — Long leases 23,913 22,569
—HhHES - Medium-term leases 132,426 129,052
539,759 519,520
&k : Representing:
URAREYREEER Land and buildings held for own use
2T R EEY carried at fair value 383,904 373,105
REMHE Investment properties 155,855 146,415

539,759 519,520
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. YE -BERZEURKREYE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(e) RERKEHEHHEZEE (e) Assets leased out under operating leases
FERBREHEFFUANEREYE All properties held under operating leases that would
ERZNERERREME - otherwise meet the definition of investment property

are classified as investment property.

AEERKEHSHENREYSE - KER The group leases out investment properties under
E-RUOTBRE-—FEZ=F > XARDE operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
RENEEMERRER - HETRES period of one to three years, with an option to renew
BEEEFERE  URRTHERS - FEL the lease after that date at which time all terms are
EHEYTEELFHSE - renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted

annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

RIAABRNCEHECRERENE Total future minimum lease payments under
BEEMRBENOT non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:

—E—tF ZE-REF

2017 2016

T Fr

$7000 $000

—FR Within 1 year 2,432 5,090

—FRERFR After T year but within 5 years 1,476 917

3,908 6,007
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. RB AR z#ER 12.
TRAFTEZELREEEE BEEREBZH
BARZFHE KRB ETHIN AIFEZRNG
BHAERR -

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

HRERLA
Proportion of ownership interest

BERTRAR

BA /R

Bzt

FEMA& Particulars of KEE
REEHE issued and fully — EMER RRE WEAHE
Place of paid-up  The group’s 2®E =y)

NEER incorporation and share/registered effective  Held by the ~ Held by a TEEK
Name of company operation capital interest ~ company  subsidiary Principal activity
Moiselle (BV) Limited ARERREE 2,008 100% 100% - REZR
British Virgin Islands BREBIZET Investment holding

2,000 shares

of US$1 each
Always Profit AEERREE IREEIET 100% - 100% REER
Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment holding
EERRLA B3 500,000 B3 100% - 100% SERHRHRES
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
EHRERBARAA B BLERTE 100% - 100% NRFRRNERE
Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong 200,000 & 17 Sourcing of materials and
LER property holding

1,800,001 BB 4

Deferred non-voting

200,000 shares

Ordinary

1,800,001 shares
BEREBRAA B2 28Rt 100% - 100% REER
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
B2 &%) BRAA B 4RR A 100% - 100% 1 AR 65 R B E 5
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Trading of fashion

apparel and accessories
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. RMIB A Z2#ER (&) 12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRERLH
Proportion of ownership interest

CETRAR

B/

BRZiE

HMA T Particulars of KEM
REEE issued and fully B ER PR KWEAE
Place of paid-up  The group’s 58 b=2)
NCES] incorporation and share/registered effective  Held by the ~ Held by a FTEER
Name of company operation capital interest ~ company  subsidiary Principal activity
EERERLT 2 213 100% - 100% REER
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Euro Legend Assets Limited RE4RAHEE IREEBIZT 100% - 100% REER
British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment holding
AERLE e 1008 B 3 100% - 100% REZR
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares Investment holding
HRERERL 3 300,008 B 3 100% - 100% ZERHRHRES
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
NERERERAF B 21 R4 100% - 100% REZR
iMaroon International Company Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Limited

WERERRA B 10,0008 1 £ 100% - 100% eSS
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
A& (BR) ARAT B 1,000,0008 % 2 100% - 100% SER RO RELS
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion

apparel and accessories
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. RMIB AT Z2#ER (&) 12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRERLH
Proportion of ownership interest

EEATR4R

BA /R

ERzwf

TR Particulars of T£E
REEHE issued and fully  BMER ARR WEAE
Place of paid-up  The group's b=2] b=2)

NS incorporation and share/registered  effective  Held by the  Held by a FTEER
Name of company operation capital interest ~ company  subsidiary Principal activity
FREARARAF B2 2143 100% - 100% REER
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. FME  500,000RERER 100% - 100% TERR RS KA
Singapore IR T Retail of fashion
500,000 shares of apparel and accessories

SGS$1 each
ZEARAA ABERARES IREBIXT 100% - 100% SERHRHREN
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
ARREARAA 2 500,008 & 100% - 100% TER R REH
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
REARARLA R 500,000 B 3 100% - 100% TERHRGRES
Perfect National International Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion
Limited apparel and accessories
EBARAT ABERREE 1REEIXT 100% - 100% RERR
Profair Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
KEREERAT B 300,008 3 100% - 100% SERHRAREN
Regal Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares Retail of fashion

apparel and accessories
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. RB AR 2R (&) 12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRERLA
Proportion of ownership interest

ERITRAR

BA& /R

Bhzwfk

HMA T Particulars of KEM
REEE issued and fully B ER PR KWEAE
Place of paid-up  The group’s BB B8
NCES] incorporation and share/registered effective  Held by the ~ Held by a FTEER
Name of company operation capital interest ~ company  subsidiary Principal activity
RK Moiselle Fashions Limited 5 1,429 B 43 70% - 70% 8 B 1o BR AT R BE 86
(AIBREESERAF) Hong Kong 1,429 shares Wholesale of fashion
(formerly known as Eastasia Plaza apparel and accessories
Limited)

BEREARAF R 1,000 R4 100% - 100% NERE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
EEREBRAT ) AR A 100% - 100% REER
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Investment holding
HERARDF ABEREE 10,0008 100% - 100% REER
Sosuccess Limited British Virgin Islands EREEIET Investment holding

10,000 shares of

US$1 each
REERERA A ABERREE 1REEIXT 100% - 100% REER
Timepro International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
EREEARAA AP M ER25,000 100% - 100% SERHRGRES
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau BT Retail of fashion
Registered capital apparel and accessories

MOP25,000
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BERHELA

Proportion of ownership interest

BRTRAR

RA /R

ERzwf

Bl e Particulars of AEE
REEEHE issued and fully  BMER ’RE WEBAR
Place of paid-up  The group's =21 =2)

NS incorporation and share/registered  effective  Held by the  Held by a FEEXK
Name of company operation capital interest ~ company  subsidiary Principal activity
RPRERRAT & 1,000,0008&H 100% - 100% SERMRHRES
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
RESHNERLF i 500,000 B 100% - 100% RELR
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Investment holding
R (R BRAT P 2,100,007 100% - 100% HERK
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing The PRC $2,100,000 Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* garments
HERER (RY) BRAF HE 8,400,0007C 100% - 100% HEAK
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) The PRC $8,400,000 Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd.* garments
A ELBRHBERAD hmE  ARMS500,0007 70% - 100% HEEHRSHRES
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion The PRC RMB500,000 Wholesale of fashion
Wholesale Co., Ltd.* apparel and accessories
A ERERTERRA ME  ARM2,000,0007 100% - 100% TERHBEY
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail The PRC RMB2,000,000 FRER & i g

Limited Company*

* REPEEGEMZABBERSE -

Retail and wholesale of
fashion apparel and
accessories

These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises

registered under the laws of the PRC.
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. REMEQRT 2=

13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

—E—tH&F —E-RE

2017 2016

T Fr

$’000 $'000

FEWEgE A ERIE Amount due from an associate _ 1,705
FE1h & &% 5 Share of net liabilities - (854)
- 851

AEBR-ZE-—AR"FONA-T+-_HHEERA
Hidden Lab Limited Z50%REFAR AT —F
5 REH1,800000t - BE-ZT—tHF
ZEA=Et+T-HBHLFE HEZWEFHE
949,000T E R H g & F 28 I HER -

AEBR-ZZE—AE=ZA=1+—-HREZE LT
ZRBHBOT

The group disposed of its 50% equity interest of A Hidden
Lab Limited to a director of the company on 22 April 2016
at a consideration of $1,800,000. Net gain on disposal of
$949,000 was recognised in “other net gain” during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

Details of the group’s interest in the associate as at 31
March 2016 are as follows:

BRERLA
Proportion of
ownership interest

B EMALK EETR AEHE

REBEA Kewd BERSHB BEIREDR KB
Form of Place of Particulars of  The group’s BE TEXH
BENAER business  incorporation issued and effective Held by a Principal
Name of associate structure and operation paid up capital interest subsidiary activity
A Hidden Lab MR BB 20 A% 12 50% 50%  BEERE
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 2 shares X B &
Retail of
fashion
apparel and

RESHBRREAER LV ERZA Hidden
Lab LimitedJ33k Ef AT - EWEAIZHRE °

accessories

A Hidden Lab Limited accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements is an

unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not

available.
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. REE QR ZHER (&) 13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
BERRZMBENBE : Summary of financial information on the associate:
EE aff BEBEFE i 2= ]
Assets  Liabilities Net Revenue Loss
liabilities
T Fr T Fr Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
—B-RE¥ 2016
100%HE &= 100 per cent 1,752 (3,460) (1,708) 46 (837)
rEECERER The group’s effective interest 876 (1,730) (854) 23 (419)
14. REERRIZER 14. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
—B—+tF —E-XRE
2017 2016
5 F5
$/000 $000
ElE&E AEHE Amount due from a joint venture 7,574 4,942

EhaEFE Share of net liabilities (7,574) (4,942)
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. REERT 2 (& 14. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
TEEREE QAR ZRER (UESENGRE Y Details of the group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
BHRRIE)FBUOT - accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

KRER L
Proportion of
ownership interest

EBITR
2% FHMRIKR #EREAFE ~EE
HERR K2 Particulars of ERER MEAE

BEARER Form of Place of issued and  The group’s B8 FTEXK

Name of joint business incorporation paid up effective Held by a Principal

venture structure and operation capital interest subsidiary activity

Sequoia HK, Limited AR AL 58 10082 B2 13 50% 50% TERH

Incorporated Hong Kong 100 shares AR & & Ei &

Retail of

fashion

apparel and

accessories
REBEE -2 8HEZEE D ASequoia HK, Sequoia HK, Limited, the only joint venture in which the
LimitedJ33E E AT HAE|HIBHE group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose

quoted market price is not available.

RELFAZHMBERBE-FEEERERS Summary of financial information on the joint venture -
the group’s effective interest:

—F-tF —E-RE

2017 2016

T T

$'000 $000

ERBEE Non-current assets 143 335
REEE Current assets 1,171 1,001
REBEE Current liabilities (8,888) (6,278)
BEFE Net liabilities (7,574) (4,942)
L/ ON Income 3,704 6,544
53 Expenses (6,336) (10,631)

FREE Loss for the year (2,632) (4,087)
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. H&EE 15. OTHER ASSETS
HthEEEES AHRBREMERS ALY Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits
AR EHARBET —FRWE o which are expected to be recovered after one year from the

end of the reporting period.

16. & 16. INVENTORIES
(@) REEHBERRRZEERRE (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

—E—tF —E—RF

2017 2016

T Fr

$/000 $000

R R Raw materials 2,855 3,937

TR Work in progress 700 801
SR Finished goods 50,080 52,962
53,635 57,700
by BRARIAFTABZEZ2FESEZS (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised
Mar as an expense and included in profit or loss is as

follows:

—E—tF —E-RE

2017 2016

T T

$’000 $'000

EERHE Carrying amount of inventories sold 56,320 74,370

s (BEME FE Write-down/(reversal of write-down)

of inventories 4,478 (983)

60,798 73,387
BESE-—_Z-ANF=ZBA=+—H1LHE The reversal of write-down of inventories made during
EvHEEENHREFEFNESE the year ended 31 March 2016 arose due to an
FEEREZAFT TSR FEIEGM o increase in the estimated net realisable value of

certain off-season clothing as a result of change in

consumer preferences.
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. FEURBE 2R T3 B fb JE U 2% 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
—E—+fF —E-RE
2017 2016
Tt Tt
$/000 $'000
FE W BR X Trade debtors 8,592 11,897
B RERRE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (27) (517)
8,565 11,380
2E - AAREREAMERK Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables 21,778 26,148
30,343 37,528
FrEREW IR R AR N — F Rl All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
SRR/ recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
(@ HRERDH (@) Ageing analysis
RE|BEHR - RBRHYFE ZBRERR As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
(Bt AEBWERA R EMBRER » 3230 analysis of trade debtors (which are included in trade
BRARBRIERE) 2BREDMMT ¢ and other receivables and net of allowance for

doubtful debts), based on invoice date, is as follows:

—E-+tF ZE-XRE
2017 2016
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
308 A Within 30 days 6,631 9,508
31BE90H Between 31 to 90 days 1,554 1,606
91HZ£180H Between 91 to 180 days 261 157
181HZ365H Between 181 to 365 days 119 109
8,565 11,380
FEWERFAEERBPEFT30E90R 3 Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the
B AKEBEEEBERZE—SHBHNKW date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit
F25() ° policy are set out in note 25(a).




17. BUWRFR R E UK (&)

(b)

FE W B 2 BB

FE W BRR 2 BB S 18 LA B AR RS 8% » A
REBERHWEAREEE 2 TREMERE
AREBESEERERRTAME (R
MEEET()() °
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the group
is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off

against trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)(i)).

FRZREREEZHRAIIOT : The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year are as follows:

—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
T Fr
$/000 $/000
REOA—A At T April 517 -
ERIBEEE Impairment losses recognised = 517
WIEEEEE Reversal of impairment losses (490) .
R=ZA=+—8© At 31 March 27 517

R-ZZE—+tHE=ZB=+—-8 " EWER
27,0007 (ZE—"%¥ :517,0007) B#%
HEREREEACRHME - ERIEEAR
BzERREEAY KRS EFHE
B MREEETG  FPLEZERER
HREAFHRE - At XREECHRR
27,0007C (ZZ— 754 1 517,0007T) R
BRI -

At 31 March 2017, trade debtors of $27,000 (2016:
$517,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties

and management assessed that none of these receivables

is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of $27,000 (2016:
$517,000) were recognised.

129
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. FEWRR TR R B fth FE UK (48) 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(0 IEFEZEWERR (c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
I 4R B 3 B 4% 1R & R E 2 FE R X The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
ZIREDMAT ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
is as follows:

—F-tF —E-RE

2017 2016

Fr Fr

$/000 $’000

I £ 380 2 =R B Neither past due nor impaired 7,960 10,264

BHTE30H Less than 30 days past due 35 633

BHE31H E90H 31 to 90 days past due 265 217

BHI91H£180H 91 to 180 days past due 186 157

BH180H ML L Over 180 days past due 119 109
________________________________________________________________________________________ 605 . L116

8,565 11,380
3 458 160 B SR B 2 B SR I YA HR Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
VEEBNTHZEREF - relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

EAMERREEERIIE - #LERK Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
EEERARGTH2BUTFER - H to a number of independent customers that have a
REEEZVEEREHRERDARK good track record with the group. Based on past
BRUNZEZWE - RIBBELER B8 experience, management believes that no impairment
BEHEEYEXERZSHEBRELRER allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
# - REBLERZEERITE EAER there has not been a significant change in credit
fn ° quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable. The group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.
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18. WERBITER 18. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
(@ RERBITEREE: (@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

—E—+F ZE-RF
2017 2016
T Fr
$’000 $'000

FHEE=BEAR Deposits with banks within three
EH 2 RITHER months to maturity when placed 36,821 83,125
RITERRRE Cash at bank and in hand 46,497 55,858

REEHBRRARZAER Cash and bank deposits in the

RITERUARRES consolidated statement of financial
REeREXRZHAETR position and cash and cash
REZEEY equivalents in the consolidated

cash flow statement 83,318 138,983
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18. HERBITER(E) 18. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)
b) REANEEEKEERIAZREZH (b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash used in
iR : operations:
—E—tF —E-REF
2017 2016
M &F T T
Note $/000 $000
BB AT 1B Loss before taxation (47,900) (51,414)
BT LA Adjustments for:
REME 2 HEWRR Valuation gains on investment
properties 11 (9,440) (14,420)
BFEBRAZ L RESEY  Valuation gains on land and
PALY LS buildings held for own use 11 (612) (1,138)
e Depreciation 5(c) 18,985 21,167
ME - BRERRE Impairment losses on property,
2R EEE plant and equipment 5(c) 2,827 7,079
FE W BR TR 2 R E & B (Reversal of)/provision for
(BmE) #iE impairment losses on trade
debtors 5(c) (490) 517
BE - ANRERAEM Provision for impairment losses
Rz B EEERE on deposits, prepayment and
other receivables 5(c) 1,285 -
& R AN Finance costs 5(a) 185 158
FE WA Interest income 4 (1,087) (1,999)
HEBHLE QAT 2WEHFEE  Net gain on disposal of an
associate 4 (949) -
HENE BERRE Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
ZER/(WE) F58 property, plant and equipment 4 2 (122)
FEh & AR 2B Share of loss of an associate 13 - 419
EEeaE AT ZEE Share of loss of a joint venture 14 2,632 4,087
ExgsoE Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes (3,133) (2,280)
EEELRE: Changes in working capital:
HttEERD (8 m) Decrease/(increase) in other
assets 788 (4,821)
FERD Decrease in inventories 2,794 11,051
JE e B 8 2 B R IR 3B N Increase in amount due from an
associate - (305)
W& & DT IEE M Increase in amount due from a
joint venture (2,632) (4,087)
R R Decrease in trade and other
H At FE UL R 2 receivables 5,717 11,480
R R Decrease in trade and other
Hh FE S RO 2 payables (4,862) (5,693)
BB Increase in provisions 865 7,504
REXBAZRE Cash used in operations (35,025) (22,817)
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18. BERBITER (&) 18. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)
(0 FEHFREXRS (c) Major non-cash transaction
HEHE QR 285 1KE1,150,000% 7T Part of the consideration for the disposal of an
CHESKRAEEX T 2R - associate of HK$1,150,000 was offset by expenses

paid by the directors on behalf of the group.

19. BB BRI EL 4t PE A3 3% 19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
ZE-tF —E-RF
2017 2016
T Tr
$/000 $'000
FE A BR X Trade creditors 5,461 5,512
HitEARBERESER Other creditors and accrued charges 34,429 42,948
B FERRRRIE Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder 1,800 -
41,690 48,460
EHAARMRAREMEMTITER —FR All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
= - settled within one year.
BANEEATRELSEER  RERIEEE The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest
BN o free and has no fixed repayment terms.
R|EHAR  RERZAHFEZELERER(E As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
SPABRMRARREMENRA) 2Rk 470 trade creditors (which are included in trade and other
I payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—F-tF —E-AF
2017 2016
T Fr
$/000 $'000
30BA Within 30 days 4,970 1,328
31HZE90H Between 31 to 90 days 315 3,155
#1890 H Over 90 days 176 1,029

5,461 5,512
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20. EERKER

() AEEBREEECGRFIE LB ENRAD
HREB(EBRI) EBREBREAZ
EEHTRHMLABEHE ((RESF
gl - EBESHEAHBUZITAEE
ZREMFRNGTE - REFBESETE
BEREESEREEBBRAZ5%M
i EGHR BESABEEBRALRA
30,0007 BB E 2 HR DR
% °

(b)) FEZWBARCSEMBERFER
ZREMRNREE - WEMB LR ARDE
BEFBFL A THEELRQAZFTE
R HARTDENEHRE -

REXEBoWBARAZEEDE
BELTITRREKRHEEZR
METE - LB ARARSEREMR
|2 BREZEFEREZ6%HERK
ﬁ%ﬁ{ﬁ AERREEE TRIRE 2BA
BAESRFPA -

B H"I

FE oW o

N
M H B i
e

EL L T

ok

(d) R IR E A E 2 & T 2 5 R
BRAS P RABEEHB(THRRE
) MBLAAREIFELEFN
ETEALEAPRABEMR  REPR
DEERG ERREAIHEEAR
mRA - MBAREEENRE WEER
AXNHARRR2BRALBE-—FSNE
ERAE -

(a)

20. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
PRC employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in
Taiwan chose to participate in a defined contribution
scheme governed by the Labour Pension Act of
Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total
salaries of the participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution
scheme, the contribution deposited into individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance of

Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in
the Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”)
organised by the government of Singapore. This
subsidiary and its employees are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the CPF. The subsidiary has no further obligations
for the actual pension payments or post-retirement

benefits beyond its contributions.



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 M 47 B 2 #®]
Annual Report 2017 44

S 25 e o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

135

(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. EERIKER (&) 20. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
MrbutEs > REBYBERNEAREERKE Save as set out above, the group has no other material
MR zHEMEKREE - obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

AEMARFTEZ2HAREERTABRA - Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.

21. BEMBERRRARZFEH 21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) HEUBRARARZAPHEBEEIE : (@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position represents:

ZEB—tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
T Fr
$/000 $000
TEEEBFESHBE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year 71 998
SR EHAEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (101) (2,649)
(30) (1,651)
BEFENESHBELER Balance of Profits Tax provision
relating to prior years (743) (12)
(773) (1,663)
BERBEHIBIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 969 1,261
196 (402)
(V. Representing:
Al IERL IR Tax recoverable (772) (1,688)
FEF Bi 1B Tax payable 968 1,286

196 (402)
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21. REMBRRKRFATZAED (F) 21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) CEBELEFSHEERRE: (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
RAEAFEEGEMBRARERZEL The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
FERaE (EE) 2ARBoREEH recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
SEUT position and the movements during the year are as

follows:
HESREE
TERHE
Depreciation AER HBERLZ
in excess of RERR  MERE  ARAE
the related EfE  Unrealised Write- Future
depreciation  Revaluation ~profits on downof  benefit of L
allowances ~ of properties inventories  inventories tax losses Total
i Tr i i i i
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
RZE-RAEMA-A At 1 April 2015 (5,363) 73,771 (2,555) (3,734) (627) 61,492
BEZT(HA) /1K (Credited)/charged to profit or
loss (450) 3,861 (401) 292 (1,167) 2,135
RERNR Charged to reserves - 3,589 - - - 3,589
RoB-AEZASH-8 A1 March 2016 G813) 81,001 (2,956) 3,44 (1,79 67,216
RIE-REMAE-H At 1 April 2016 (5,813) 81,221 (2,956) (3,442) (1,794) 67,216
BRRTR Charged to profit or loss 45 1,184 643 1,369 = 3,241
fRERMR Charged to reserves = 3,659 = = - 3,659

MZE-tEZA=+-8 At31 March2017 (5,768) 86,064 (2,313) (2,073) (1,794) 74,116
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21. REMBRRRFATZHAER (& 21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
b) CERIBEEFSHEEREE  (#) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)
—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
T Fr
$/000 $/000
RGEHBEMRRRER Net deferred tax assets recognised in
EIEFT SR EE T4 the consolidated statement of
financial position (3,831) (6,187)
REEHBRRERERAZ Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
BRIEFREHRAEBFHE in the consolidated statement of
financial position 77,947 73,403

74,116 67,216
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21. MEMBRRRARZAEH (&) 21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(0 AERELEFESHEE : (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
REHERWE I ZEHBE - AEEL In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
BERTIHEREEZERRELERTEHE note 1(p), the group has not recognised deferred tax
B assets in respect of the following temporary

differences:

—E-tF ZE-RF

2017 2016

T Tr

$/000 $000

BisEE Tax losses 183,124 127,253

FEZNEBRTERBER Depreciation in excess of the related
M- -BERREZ depreciation allowances and
HERE impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment 7,593 5,970
BEECEHESVRE Provision for onerous operating lease

contracts 13,014 12,149

203,731 145,372
REABRBEEBAITBELEFBEFELZ Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
#B&Z =F A fE M 27K IH6,703,0007T (= $6,703,000 (2016: $1,316,000) which can be carried
F—XF 11,316,0007t) - IHELEE forward up to three years from the year in which the
FEEARESTEEARAERAZRE loss was incurred, an amount of $56,196,000 (2016:
56,196,0007T (Z & — < ¥ : 54,336,000 $54,336,000) which can be carried forward up to five
T RAUBRELERFERC RS TFR years from the year in which the loss was incurred and
A ZFE1,116,000c (Z & — N F : an amount of $1,116,000 (2016: $1,565,000) which
1,565,0007T) ° RIEREBBRA - 8728 can be carried forward up to ten years from the year in
119,109,000t (ZZF— 7 : 70,036,0007T) which the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of
I SERE o $119,109,000 (2016: $70,036,000) does not expire

under the current tax legislation.
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22. REMBITER 22. SECURED BANK LOANS
RZE—tF=RA=+—8 - FEEERHART At 31 March 2017, all the secured bank loans were
ERETIERES : repayable as follows:
=F-tF —
2017 2016
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000
—FRNEPER2EHEREH Portion of term loans due for repayment
within one year 581 581
—FRIBPEELZ Term loans due for repayment after one year
BEHERMZT) (note 1)
—FREWER After 1 year but within 2 years 581 581
MEEZBEFER After 2 years but within 5 years 1,744 1,744
hE# After 5 years 4,748 5,330
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 7073 7,655
7,654 8,236
MizEl . BNREDREERGEMBBETERN Note 1:  The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
BEAFTHE  UWEST AEAIREREE dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the
RRZEE - effect of any repayment on demand clause.
REB—tE=ZRA=+—H FXEBEZRTE At 31 March 2017, the bank loans of the group were
M3 LA BRE#1823,180,0007T (=& — R F : secured by legal charges over land and buildings with an

22,500,00070) 2 LW R EEY 2 EEHER

aggregate carrying value of $23,180,000 (2016:
AATIREZ B RIEBIE o R e

$22,500,000) and guaranteed by the company.

BIRRTESAG AL TEADNTMB AT The secured bank loans are subject to the fulfilment of
ZHBMRR L RER 2 R - M EEERBE covenants relating to certain statement of financial position
Rt IRRBREBREARTER - A% ratios of the company’s subsidiaries. If the group were to

BEREEAGBTREREZER - BRE
ERBDESRBREBE2E - SHBHNKE

25(b) e REZZB—tF=A=+—0 LEER ) , , )
BRI B S S 3 (— B — R ) o its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the

group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
25(b). As at 31 March 2017, none of the covenants relating
to the secured bank loans had been breached (2016: Nil).

breach the covenants the secured bank loans would

become payable on demand. The group regularly monitors
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23. B 23. PROVISIONS
BRSEHEAHNRE Provision for onerous operating lease contracts

—E—tF ZE-RE

2017 2016

Fr Fr

$/000 $000

AEA—H At 1 April 12,149 4,645
BoMRE Additional provisions made 10,037 9,789
2B ARE Provision utilised (9,172) (2,285)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 13,014 12,149
AEERBRBEBRBEBRIIEL 2E TIEH The provision was made for onerous lease contracts for
ZEERBARSOFELEE - REZZE0 B certain stores of the Hong Kong operation and Outside

THBEEZ T IRERABRZRE/EHET
HEHEHK TEE 2RBENE - At - BEK
SHESHBRRBEC NI HERD BRI T #E

- the economic benefits expected to be derived from sales
B0

Hong Kong operation. Under these contracts, the

unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations have exceeded

generated by these stores. Consequently, a provision for

onerous operating lease contracts was recognised in

“selling and distribution costs”.
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24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

FEEGREEERHORFARFES
BReHRENGERESBXR - AORAE
BEBORFEIREREB2EEBFIETH

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

RT3 e statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below.

KAH The company

Rx  ERoEE REARR  RERN ARR#ER
Share Share  Contributed Retained Total
capital premium surplus profits equity
r Tr r r Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

R=B-EFMA—-AZ&H  Balance at 1 April 2015 2,880 65,327 61,572 170,588 300,367

ZE-RF/-RER Changes in equity in 2015/16:

3 R
EREERELE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 10,982 10,982

EECREZRE Dividend approved in respect of

(Br224(b)i7) the previous year (note 24(b)(ii)) - - - (11,517) (11,517)
TEECERZRE Dividend declared in respect of

(Brat24b)i) the current year (note 24(b)(i)) - - - (2,879) (2,879)
R=Z-x"E=A=t+-H Balance at 31 March 2016

A 2,880 65,327 61,572 167,174 296,953
RZB-REMA—-AZ&H  Balance at 1 April 2016 2,880 65,327 61,572 167,174 296,953
ZE-RE/-tER Changes in equity in 2016/17:

RERE:
EREEREEE Total comprehensive income for

the year = = - 6,229 6,229

EEEREZRE Dividend approved in respect of

(HE24(b)(ii)) the previous year (note 24(b)((ii)) = = = (5,759) (5,759)
FEEEERZRE Dividend declared in respect of

(Brt240)i) the current year (note 24(b)(i)) - - - (2,879) (2,879)
R=B-t#=A=+-8 Balance at 31 March 2017

ZEH 2,880 65,327 61,572 164,765 294,544

141



Moiselle International Holdings Limited % ¥ B B2 4 M 45 B 2 5]
Annual Report 2017 4 &4

S 2 st o B ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

142

(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24, BEX - EFERRE () 24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
b)) KBE (b) Dividends
(i) EIERLGEZRREZAFERE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

—E2-tF —E-AF
2017 2016
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
EERRKMAFHBRESR  Interim dividend declared and paid
BRI (ZE—XREF: of 1 cent per ordinary share
BREERIW) (2016: 1 cent per ordinary share) 2,879 2,879
RBEHRRBERDIK Final dividend proposed after the end
AERESREBER2ML of the reporting period of 2 cents
(ZB—RE: per ordinary share (2016: 2 cents
BREBR2MW) per ordinary share) 5,759 5,759
8,638 8,638
RESHREEBDIRZAHBRE The final dividend proposed after the end of the
TREREHAREIZREE - reporting period has not been recognised as a

liability at the end of the reporting period.

(i) FENAEREEmBRRZ £ — B E (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
FERE  IRAFEERERIK company attributable to the previous financial
17 year, approved and paid during the year

—E-tF ZE-XRE

2017 2016

Fr Fr

$’000 $'000

BRE—EMBEE Final dividend in respect of the
YREAFEERER previous financial year, approved
A REBAREER and paid during the year, of 2 cents

EER2AL(ZE—REF per ordinary share (2016: 4 cents

BREBRAL) per ordinary share) 5,759 11,517
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24. BEX - RERRE (&) 24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
0 BF (c) Share capital
FEEREZITRA Authorised and issued share capital
—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
BB EE S8 BHEE &5
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
F K Fx T Fx
7000 $’000 ‘000 $’000
EE Authorised:
BREE0ITZ Ordinary shares of $0.01
EZBR each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
EBRTRAZ: Issued and fully paid:

REEHBREREER At beginning of the year

and at end of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880
EERFEANGRBERTRERZRE The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
BEARRAEBZLERTE-ZREE- dividends as declared from time to time and are
FEEERHARNAZNBEEZAR entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
LHEH o company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the company’s residual assets.

d) RHEEEREW (d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) RO#EE (i)  Share premium
REFREFHBELRE ROEER In accordance with the Companies Law of the
ARRKFARBDZRE  HEEER Cayman Islands, the share premium account is
RoOKKREBHE  ARTRENE distributable to shareholders of the company
ORI BEEREXBKBREF provided that immediately following the date on
BEEZE® - ROBER AT which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
BEAFBRMD 2B RIEHDIK the company will be in a position to pay off its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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24. BEX - RERRE (&)
d REHEERBENE)

(i) HMEE
HMFEEER_-_ZZE_F—A
“tTRAANZAEEEATRE
ZHBARZRAHBEEMILES
REZARATNEBRITRAZEHEZ
EF o

(iii) EZHE
EiXREESHEERRESBES
EBUBBRRELECBEREZHE =
REENE MBS T HREE -

(iv) ZEBBIE
BENBBELEBAZPEE
By AQBZFEMBARERY
MEEZERGBAE DA REER
SRBIRBEREINES BHER
IREEEELABFERBE
WA (RPBERFTE) 210%E #
AFHBEEESRN BEEZESZHER
EZHFMERZ50%A 1L o 1B
EcTAFEREEERIERAARE
EXMAZE - FENBARZESH
HEREEREENE BRI TS
BRENES R-ZZTAE+A
“+LHEBITEMNE AZEE X
F-A—BR EHERTBAZE
EER BUHIYEOBIRBREE
FESEHEE -

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance

with the accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to
wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises, the
PRC subsidiaries of the company are required to
set up two statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of its
annual profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC regulations, until the balance of the fund
reaches 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses or to convert
into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at the
discretion of the directors of the PRC subsidiaries.
Starting from 1 January 2006, the transfer is no
longer a statutory obligation upon the revision of
the law on 27 October 2005 and no transfer to

staff general fund has been made since.
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24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(U]

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve has
been set up and will be dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of land and buildings held for own

use (note 1(g)).

(vi) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the then combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the same as

the share premium.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $291,664,000 (2016: $294,073,000).
After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend of 2 cents per ordinary
share (2016: 2 cents per ordinary share), amounting to
$5,759,000 (2016: $5,759,000) (note 24(b)). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services

commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

M

Capital management (continued)

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

During 2017, the group’s strategy in monitoring its
capital structure, which was unchanged from 2016,
was to maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its
liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or adjust
the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends payable to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to increase the

cash level.

Except for the secured bank loans which require the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain statement of
financial position ratios of the company’s subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements,

neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the group’s business. The

group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These receivables are due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with long overdue balances are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. The group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Bank deposits are placed normally with counterparties
that have sound credit ratings. Therefore, management

does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to

meet its obligations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, 9% (2016: 15%)
and 34% (2016: 37%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the group’s largest debtor

and the five largest debtors respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
group has not provided any financial guarantee which

would expose the group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash outflows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or,

if floating, based on rates current at the end of the

reporting period).
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25. SRIAMREERSMIAZAAE (A 25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) REBELRA (&) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
HAESHEBRTEISTEERDE As the directors do not expect the banks would
BB R > SHRERFRURR Z|RTT exercise the rights to demand repayment, the bank
ERERERSEERPEE - AL > 7 loans subject to repayment on demand clause are
ZERTERMES  TREATREBBHEE expected to be repayable based on the specific
M ZATHNARTRBERE » URMHER repayment terms. Hence, for these bank loans, the
ATEEERANKFER 2 BRGENY following tables show the contractual undiscounted
RERHEE 2D BZE - cash outflows according to the specific repayment

terms and, separately, the impact to the timing of the
cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke their

unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate

effect.
“B-tF
2017
TORFRRAE R
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
-£%  RER
BRER BIER
BEEA More than  More than
BES  —FR Tyearbut 2yearsbut  EF# KAE
On  Within  lessthan  lessthan More than @3 Carrying
demand Tyear  2years  Syears 5 years Total  amount
Tr fr fr fr Tr fr fr
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
ZRERBERAR Bank loans subject to repayment
ZRATER on demand clauses:
RREENHEN scheduled repayment - 758 744 2,149 4,766 8,417 7,654
ERESREBEAR Trade and other payables - 41,69 = = - 41,690 41,690
- M8 44 2149 4766 50107 49,344
BEEFAZER Adjustments to disclose cash flows
DBEBENGHETES  onbank loans based on lender's
BeREzHERE right to demand repayment 7,654 (758) (744) (2,149  (4,766) (763) =

7654 41,690 - - - 49344 49344
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25. SRERBEELRERIAEZAARAE (&) 25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)y REBEZEER (E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
ZB-RE
2016
TRATRASR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

-F&  WEK

BmER  BRFR

HERA More than ~ More than
=2 —E@®  Tyearbut 2 years but nE4 REE
On  Within  lessthan  lessthan  More than @ Canying
demand Tyear  2vyears 5 years 5 years Total  amount
Tr T Tr Tn Tr Tr Tr
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000

ZREREBERUIR Bank loans subject to repayment
7

ZRITER: on demand clauses:
RREESSHER scheduled repayment - 755 742 2151 5,457 9,105 8,236
BRI R EENH Trade and other payables - 48,460 - - - 48,460 48,460
- 49015 M 2,151 5457 57565 56,696
BEEFAZER Adjustments to disclose cash flows
I ERERHERTER on bank loans based on lender's
ReRBRERE right to demand repayment 8,236 (755) (742)  I51)  (5457) (869) -
8,236 48,460 - - - 56,696 56,696
(c) FIERB (c) Interest rate risk
AEBZANZEBREIERBFIEEME The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

& o variable rate financial liabilities.
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25. SREAREERSMIAZARE (H) 25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(0 HM=ER(E) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) FIFEZE (i) Interest rate profile
TRAXEENRBEHRTEER The following table details the interest rate profile
EERERABEZR=EE of the group’s interest-bearing financial assets

and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period:
—E—tF —E-REF
2017 2016
BERFI= BERFI=E
Effective Tr Effective Fx
interest rate $’000 interest rate $'000
BEEFZEBMERE : Fixed rate financial assets:
—iRITER - Deposits with banks 1.29% 36,821 1.40% 83,125
FEREERMEME  Variable rate financial
liabilities
—BRARITER - Secured bank loans 2.39% (7,654) 2.18% (8,236)

(i) BEEZHT (i) Sensitivity analysis
RZE—tF=A=+—8 - &5t At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that a general
FlEggigi HAO20EEL ™ increase/decrease of 20 basis points in interest
HthtfrE oS RE#FTE > AKX rates, with all other variables held constant,
SEEzBRBREEBBGEM HOR would have increased/decreased the group’s loss
R &R 1B IN413,0007T after tax and decreased/increased retained profits

(ZZF—7<%F 1 14,0007T) ° by approximately $13,000 (2016: $14,000).
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

25 EREREEREMIARZAAE(F)

(c) FERAK (E) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) BBE D H (&) (i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

TRHRESTETR BRI KRG
BRBEPRREE AARFET
A EASERZAEERESRA
R IEHAEENZFRN
BER(RREERN) ERTE-A
RAEEILESERYBHRRAN
AREFEZEMESTIAR  #8A
BEoMEEERELS TRMAGRE
ARENRER BEINE-F
—RNEREAZEERER -

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
annualised impact on the group’s loss after tax
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to floating rate instruments which expose
the group to cash flow interest rate risk at that
date. The analysis does not take into account
exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising

from fixed rate instruments as the group does not

hold any fixed rate instruments which are
measured at fair value in the financial statements.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as
20716.

d EBE¥ER
FEESRcEREARIERBARS
EEREAEE BARKEZBENEM
EEUMNE (AR ZRX ST E LI EEE
B2 ER) BEM 2 BWIR - BN
FERREER - SIBMIRRARZERE
ERERT B ARBREBT-

(d) Currency risk
The group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, expenses and recharges
amongst group entities which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this

risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros,

Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

25 EREREEREMIAZAAE(E)

d) BE¥ERGE)

BMEBTERIEER 2 EEERMS -
BRE TERUBUNETRBEIN  IEHEE
RBEHLUET - ARBHETE - B
RBTEETTEY  EEEEHEITE
REBTEEREREERAR - FLUABT
AEZRZME  ARZERZELTE
R EEERRAEAREZEREBTK -

RUARBERIEER cSEEREM
BREMB I EZEEERRERE
TREN b5 KRB UARE
E-HREUBRHE2EBEREERS
SME  EEERRMAEZEYERT
* o

[l

FEBASEMEARREEEREE =
B XEMHE -

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong
Kong dollars, all sales and purchases are denominated
in either Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or United
States dollars, except for certain purchases from
Europe. Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the
United States dollar, management does not expect that
there will be any significant currency risk associated
with such United States dollars denominated
transactions. For transactions denominated in Euros,
since the volume of such transactions is not
significant, management considers the exposure to

currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi, except for certain borrowings from group
entities and transactions amongst group entities that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, most of other
transactions are denominated in Renminbi. For
borrowings and transactions amongst group entities
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the management

considers that the exposure to currency risk is low.

The group’s exposure to currency risk and its policies

for managing such risk were unchanged from 2016.
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25 EREREEREMIARZAAE(F)

(d) BE¥ERE)
(i) FEREZEEERR

T 2R B A 5 B $R & B R 38 3F bAAR
HERDREEEITENCRIAEE
HEBHAZ 2 ERIERBFH
HHED e TRTABEEERNEY
MELQRFERER (RERERAA
REMBARNFEREN M) M
EENER - TROSERBRE
PRZEXRHIGBBEAEZI 2
A REXRBBREIWERT 2
BHRESAEENZIEREMEE
MERALTBEEA -

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the group’s significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. The exposure arising from the
borrowings from group entities that in substance
form part of the net investment in subsidiaries is
excluded. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the group’s

presentation currency are excluded.

frREZNEER (LER5IT)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

“B-tF ZE-RE
2017 2016

B AR N [ BT ARE

Hong Kong Hong Kong
Euros dollars ~ Renminbi Euros dollars  Renminbi
T T T Tr Tn Tr
$/000 $/000 $000 §'000 $'000 $'000
FEWERS R EMEWE  Trade and other receivables - 85,972 = - 79,718 -
RERBLZEN Cash and cash equivalents - M . . 4 _
EABERREMEFT  Trade and other payables 4,313) (51,159) (20,320) (3,501) (47,515) -

ERAEEREE  Netexposure arising from

FEECERES recognised assets and liabilities (4,313) 34,854 (20,320) (3,501) 32,244 -
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25. cRIAMEERSMIAZAAE(E) 25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d E¥RRE) (d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) BEEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TRERMEBERGEHRAKAE The following table indicates the instantaneous
REEZHMEERRE BB EH K change in the group’s loss after tax and retained
EECBRBREBEBERREBET 28 profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates
HEE SRREGEREEHER to which the group entities have significant
TE-FUMS SBREBIRE exposure at the end of the reporting period had
TZENBEERAYAZETR changed at that date, assuming all other risk
HihEW o BEEEHMTE - variables remained constant. In this respect, it is

assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar

against other currencies.

“E-tf “E-RF
2017 2016
Ex Ex
L#/  BE&BEE  REEA R/ BEEERE  REEA
(&) g/ "/ (TH%) g/ W/

Increase/ (B2) (%) Increase/ (B2) ()

(decrease) Increase/ Decrease/ (decrease) Increase/ Decrease/

in foreign (decrease) (increase) in foreign (decrease) (increase)

exchange inloss in retained exchange inloss in retained

rates after tax profits rates after tax profits

r i r r

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

B Euros 10% 360 360 10% 292 292
(10)% (360) (360) (10)% (292) (292)

B Hong Kong dollars 5% (1,111) (1,111) 5% (1,027) (1,027)
(5)% 1,111 1,111 (5)% 1,027 1,027

ARH Renminbi 5% 848 848 - - -

(5)% (848) (848) - - -
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25 EREREEREMIARZAAE(F)

(d) BE¥ERE)

(i) HBEEZH (E)
ERFENN 2O MEREFAEER
BEEMZIMmEAERNEESR
AAENESTERBERRZERR
BMABBRUZHNESHEE -

BREINMCBRRIEERZEH
ERARENFTEXAEEMFELR
¥ HA R R A £ B H B M EE LB 2
TRTE BESEBULEES
REFZHEEBFEELNENR
YR - kDM T BEEEEBE
SIMBRRAZHBRRBERSE
B2 ERREEZEME  &E
DMDUZBE—REF2R-—HEE
1T e

(e) DR{E
FFESRMIEYREANR-ZE—tER
—E-REZRA=T-HZAREBETE

BEREZRZHEIE-

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities” profit or loss
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting

period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the group which expose the group to currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within
the group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the lender
or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong into the group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2016.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2017 and 2016.
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26. EIfE 26. COMMITMENTS
(@ RZZE—tHF=A=+—BUERHK (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2017
BERELBBZERBTEREAENT : not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:
—E—tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
Fr Fr
$’000 $’000
254 Contracted for _ 499
by R=ZZBE—tF=A=+—H  REFTTHE (b) At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease
RELHEZTARENZERBAESR payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
BEMT : payable as follows:
—F—tfF —E-RF
2017 2016
Fr Fr
$/000 $/000
—FR Within 1 year 93,009 105,818
—F®RELFER After 1 year but within 5 years 61,011 85,421
HEiEAF Over 5 years = 1,060
154,020 192,299
AEEZKEHERAETYE - 25H The group leases a number of properties under
HN—RALR/B—ERF  LARKWEF operating leases. These leases typically run for an
ENERMARREN - HENHEER initial period of one to six years, with an option to
REFHAE  URWRHSHEE - renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted annually to
reflect market rentals.
BREXHBEHEBERTRIN  REEE In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
RETHEDERE -—TWREBEDLE above, the group has commitments to make rental
REESAREBZEAE- payments at a percentage of revenue for certain leased
properties.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
In October 2015, a subsidiary of the group in Hong Kong

27. EEE 27.
R-ZZE—EF+A AEEREB-FRKEL
A(EBMBAR ) EEBHN  HEHE—FH
REEERETEFINTHRES S AR EMZ
EARASMHBIEBELRERLENR -EX LS
BECERSHRERCEZERTBHEBAR - #
REFRAENREBEZZEMBEBRRTUZ AR
RE > BBNBARGEEERRIE LMEBERS
REAER - AKECZREIMAFEZMNEHREE
RENE  ESBEEQLAEEZIRENS
RKER - EUHR=-ZB—tF=ZA=+—HAEE
BEBRRFIREE -

(the “Hong Kong Subsidiary”) received a notice that it was
being sued by a fabric manufacturer under a writ of
summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in respect of alleged infringement of
copyright. The generally indorsed writ of summons was
subsequently served on the Hong Kong Subsidiary but the
statement of claim has not yet been served up to the date of
issue of these financial statements and the Hong Kong
Subsidiary continues to deny any liability in respect of the
above claim. An external counsel has been engaged to
defend the said claim and the directors will continue to
seek advice from the group’s external counsel. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of this claim
as at 31 March 2017.

28. EXBEBALRS 28.
BREZESURBERAMBAFAREZRZ REH
o KEBFLTHERBEBALZRS

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(@ BHEBATNZIXS (@) Transactions with related companies
—E—tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
REWMEZHEWA Rental income from investment
properties 575 408
EEFEE2EEREX Rental expense for director’s quarters = 532
ETIEEZHEEMAX Rental expense for staff quarter 1,200 600
ZEEMRBMAEZ Rental expense for a retail store and
HelExX office space 506 572
PR 75 & Wt A Service fee income 929 951
REERX Service fee expense 68 42
BEENABE Purchase of fashion apparels and
R i B & &% B 8 accessories from a joint venture 140 80
BE UM Purchase of cosmetic goods 79 341
BEAR Purchase of samples = 9
o & B 1) R 8 K2 BC & Sales of fashion apparels and
FTEERQA accessories to a joint venture 1,797 564
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(A% #37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. EXEBMALRS () 28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@ HBEBARAZIXZ (#) (@) Transactions with related companies (continued)
BB AR L 2SS WA c HeRX Rental income, rental expense, service fee income,
RBEWA - REEM AR EETIHEFT service fee expense, purchase and sales with related
WHEHEERZZEREE - companies were at terms mutually agreed by the

parties concerned.

b)) TEEEAEME (b) Key management personnel remuneration
TEEBAEHES (BEWE7FAKREX Remuneration for key management personnel,
NFARTDHTESZ2HBA)NOT ¢ including amounts paid to the company’s executive

directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

— —E—RE

2017 2016

Fx Frx

$’000 $'000

SHIEERER Short-term employee benefits 11,754 13,710
BB RESER Post-employment benefits 54 81

11,808 13,791
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29. AEEEZHHBRRE

29. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—E—tF —E-RE
2017 2016
T T T T
$’000 $’000 $000 $000
FRBEE Non-current assets
KRB AR 2R Interest in subsidiaries 285,494 283,193
REBEE Current assets
H th FE R Other receivables 10,166 14,749
BERBTHER Cash and bank deposits 245 465
10,411 15,214
G A=N Current liabilities
H B Other payables 1,361 1,454
REBEEFE Net current assets 9,050 13,760
EEFHE NET ASSETS 294,544 296,953
EXR GG CAPITAL AND RESERVES
&N Share capital 2,880 2,880
& Reserves 291,664 294,073
IR RSB TOTAL EQUITY 294,544 296,953




30. EHEBEE

31.

R-Z—tHFHA AEEREB-—IMEL
TEEBY  Hi —BEFTRESBREIITH
B EEREMR 2 ERSHRRERBEHRR
HHEER o EF IR H EEL789,0007T - REZZE
MEHRKRAH UEREEREELRE R
BRETRE2ER  AEERABHELEER
MR TREAEEERIAERCERNRR
H o

BEERBRERE
REZZB—tH=ZRA=+—-H EZRAHLEHE
ZEES AR RERERT ASuper Result
Consultants Limited » —"RAEBHERREFHS
B 11 D2 VAP AN KRN i i -t R N
2B o
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30. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

31.

In May 2017, a subsidiary of the group in Hong Kong
received a notice that it was being sued by a landlord
under a writ of summons in the District Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in respect of breaching
a tenancy agreement. The landlord made a claim of
approximately $789,000. As at the date of these financial
statements, no provision for this claim has been made. On
the basis of currently available information, the group
considered that the legal proceedings are unlikely to result

in any material outflow of economic benefits from the

group.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 March 2017, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the group to be
Super Result Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce

financial statements available for public use.
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32, BFE=—ZE—+tHE=ZA=+—HLEECHE 32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
MESARERZIEE] - FREANRZEZ AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
T REES & EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BEEZEUMBHRRTZEH  EESHTLAE Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
EEMBIEBIT R ZEMIZER  ZEBITR HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
FIRERBE_Z—tF=A=+—HLHF standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
EMREN  BNAREZSMBERREN - Z March 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
ERFUT 2T RAEETRETKEES financial statements. These include the following which
B may be relevant to the group:
RTHABH
RERBRZ
B HEEXR

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BBETER) B7R2BAA [HEenEx - K& ] —Z-t+t%—-A-H
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
(BBETER) B2 2ERTA [FEH - HAREEREZELHEELE ] —Z—+t¥—-A—-H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets 1 January 2017

for unrealised losses

(BEMBEHREER) Fo3 (24T A ] —E-NF—-HF—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
(BERBYBHREER) B155% [ KEEFEH W ] —E2-N\¥—HA—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
(BRBHREER) F16% [HE —E-hF—-HA—H

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019




32, BE-E—+tHE=RA=+—HILEFEEEHE
HENAREMZIET - FILERARZEZ

WREXE (A

NG ETE R RSB RT R aT ZE AR PR
RBRANELE2FE - £5R1L  AEEHD
BRINMEANI D T EA MRS M BRRE
BMEREZE FHZENE-SHRIWN
T o ARAEE SRR - AJREERFRE
E-—ITE TEEEERERBHARMAE
AZEHRE FAMBBESERMELR
BAFHEMBT AN  BEZRREE-—TZE -

(BEBMBHREER) E165R[HE ]
MMM EI( RS » AEBEREEEED R
AREHERKEHE  YRBEHES EHA
EDRETHIR - NEBERHBAT LED
MH - WERABART LEMALY -

32.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
(continued)

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before
their effective date and which transitional approach to take,
where there are alternative approaches allowed under the

new standards.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(h), currently the group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending

on the classification of the lease. The group enters into

some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.
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32, BFE=—ZE—+tHE=ZA=+—HLEECHE 32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS

B RERZIER] - HPLEARREZ

WRERE (AF)

(BRMBHRESEAB16RHE(H
EHEBUBRRELEUE 1R TERELE
HEARBHOSRSEENREBARNS
KR —ERABTBYUBRELERE16
5o AEARTBEIMEHEREERE -
B ZATEERENRR - ABASRE
BEREHESTREELEFEUNGTNEME
MAOARR - BIAENRME EH  ABAKEZR
BREHEMRNRERIARTEHEEE
KiEwAEENEREIEE - ROKRERZ
BERBER  AEASBRIABELELRT
EENFEHXRERABEERE  MIFRE
BARRRENRNZASREERDRIBEER
EMEENEERX -FR-EIUTEER
& REATRESKELEHEXEARES
HE(MEMBN2EAARUT) REEEEE
MWEE  RZEEERT  HESFASEERE
HARRGEERR -

BBV BERELENEIEETESFEAERE
AERBAZRBBEANSBALEHENTE - K
ERRENEHEERTE - Bt ElXn
ERASEREERBEEM  THENRESEHE
FENBRRBERIMEER o HUHE26(b)
FrigE R=E—+tFE=F=+—8 &x£HE
RETTRHECEHSRMENRRKERE
14 7154,020,0007T * KEBH BRBEB R
—ZREHREMAR - Bt - —BRABTEBTK
WMEEAE16E B ZESETEFTERD
HEaE URAMENEAREE - A£H
BETETEMHFMAND N UBRERMNEE
SRS ERF 16N BEEHERENMEEN
FEERARE EREZEUTEERENE
Al IHRRSERASTEMEREEDE 6
SR BT YRR LN EMANURREEE
fEHAE -

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
(continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees
will no longer distinguish between finance leases and
operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to
current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement
date of the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a
lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset
and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to
apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note
26(b), at 31 March 2017 the group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to $154,020,000 for properties, a significant portion of
which is payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The group
will need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine
the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16,
after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16
and the effects of discounting.



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 M 47 B 2 #®]
Annual Report 2017 44

SR (S SETE S

165
Properties Held for Investment

3t RERE A

Address Existing use Lease term

@@ EHB

1A

RIGEBE1455

B

T DR JE BHESE
(a) Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road

North Point

Hong Kong Shop Short lease

(b) i

5

RERA35

MEREE—H

1312635 2 253 i
(b) Part of Workshop No. 6, 13th Floor

Kodak House I

39 Healthy Street East

North Point

!
i

RIAE

Hong Kong Office Long lease

0 &B#
BT
&g EE 75
B
2612 8R1D
(c) Part of 26th Floor
Hing Wai Centre
No. 7 Tin Wan Praya Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong Warehouse Medium-term lease

mp
]

hHEE
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1t REAR b

Address Existing use Lease term

(d) B8

NEE

RAHE

BME81-875%%

CERIERE

BEAKBE rE hHEE
(d) Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,

Island Industrial Building,

Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street

Tai Kok Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong Warehouse Medium-term lease

(e) HFERYITRZELNBIERE
REREF1.6E3E3CKIDE WRAE THEE
(e) Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,
Tianfa Building F1.6,
Tian’an Chegongmiao
Industrial Zone,
Shenzhen, the PRC Office Medium-term lease

(f) HERITAZEAFIEBARAR

H2.8EE5#E5A5 R5A6E ~ 6126A5 » 6A6 * 6A7R

6ASELLR7IE7A9 ~ 7A10 ~ 7AT1 ~ 7A12 »

TAI3R7A14E BE hHIEE
(f) Flats 5A5 and 5A6 on 5th Floor,

Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor

and Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and

7A14 on 7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2.8,

Tian’an Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC Quarter Medium-term lease
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(A& #5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

UTAAEEBE_ZE—tF=A=+—HLEE The following is a summary of the published results and assets

FERSFEHREEREERABZIHE - and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31
March 2017.

ES RESULTS

BZE=A=1t—-HLEE
Year ended 31 March
“E—tF ZE-RE ZE-HF ZE-NWME =—FT-=

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Tr Fr FTr Tr Tr
$/000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
I Revenue 280,397 327,996 419,965 458,677 418,895
& (BR) %A (Loss)/profit from operations (55,135) (62,308) 6,642 33,054 24,749
& WA Finance costs (185) (158) (1) - (3)
FE{LE4 & AT 2 B3 Share of loss of an associate - (419) (188) (219) (28)
A2 QT2 Share of (loss)/profit of
(B18) &7 a joint venture (2,632) (4,087) 505 (1,019) (327)
TREEYR Net valuation gains on land
RENEZ and buildings and
HEKEFHE investment properties 10,052 15,558 9,682 1,244 2,360
BRBLAT (B518) /BT (Loss)/profit before taxation (47,900) (51,414) 16,640 33,060 26,751
FrE® Income tax (4,578) (5,101) (5,309) (5,137) (6,722)
FR(EE) BF  (Loss)/profit for the year (52,478) (56,515) 11,331 27,923 20,029
THALTER.: Attributable to:
DA R R Equity shareholders
of the company (52,000) (56,515) 11,331 27,923 20,029
FEBER Non-controlling interests (478) - - - -
FR(EE) BF  (Loss)/profit for the year (52,478) (56,515) 11,331 27,923 20,029
S (BE) /BF  (Loss)/earnings per share
BER Basic $(0.18) $(0.20) $0.04 $0.10 $0.07
s Diluted $(0.18) $(0.20) $0.04 $0.10 $0.07
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(LA ¥ 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

=A=+-—H
As at 31 March
—2-tf ZT-RE& ZE-HF ZT-NE =—FT-=

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
T Fr T Tr Tr
$’000 $'000 $/000 $/000 $/000
M -BERRE  Property, plant and
equipment 554,472 536,790 522,076 466,123 449,365
HitEE Other assets 21,397 23,446 18,888 21,885 15,145
EEFRBSHREE Deferred tax assets 3,831 6,187 8,375 9,238 7,166
REBEEFE Net current assets 104,742 165,768 249,605 295,339 288,857
EERRBEMEEE Total assets less current
liabilities 684,442 732,191 798,944 792,585 760,533
kRBEE Non-current liabilities (77,947) (73,403) (69,867) (63,797) (59,216)
606,495 658,788 729,077 728,788 701,317
[N Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880
=1 Reserves 603,493 655,908 726,197 725,908 698,437
RATEBREN Total equity attributable to
BRRER equity shareholder
of the company 606,373 658,788 729,077 728,788 701,317
FE IR 2R Non-controlling interests 122 - - - -

HRRER TOTAL EQUITY 606,495 658,788 729,077 728,788 701,317







UNITS 1-5, 11/F, KODAK HOUSE 2,
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